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STA ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2019 
 
 

Date:   Monday 25th November 2019 
Time:   9.30am – 1.30pm  
Location: Japan Theatre, Questacon (King Edward Terrace, Parkes ACT) 
Chair:  Professor Emma Johnston AO, President STA 
 
Morning tea and lunch will be provided 

TIME ITEM 
 

DOCUMENT WHO REQUIRED 
ACTION 

9:30am Welcome 
Attendance, Apologies, Proxies 

 EJ 
EJ 

 
For noting 

9:32am Approval of Minutes of 2018 AGM  Attachment A EJ For approval 

9:35am President’s Annual Report Attachment B EJ For noting 

9:50am CEO’s Annual Report  
2018/19 report against operational plan  

Attachment C 
Attachment D 

KW 
 

For noting 

10:00am Report on the STEM Ambassadors program Attachment E KW For noting 

10:15am Morning Tea / Inter Cluster Meet-up    

10:45am Treasurer’s Report   

Audited Financial Statements 2018-19 
Auditor’s Clearance Letter 
Management Representation Letter 

Attachment F 

Attachment G 
 

JD For decision  
 
 

10:55am 2019/20 Budget Attachment H JD For noting 

11:05am Membership Report  Attachment I JB For noting 

11.15am Constitutional Review update  Verbal DS For noting 

11:25am Executive Committee election  Attachment J DS For vote 

12:05pm Urgent cluster items for discussion Verbal EJ For discussion 

12:20pm Other Business Verbal EJ For discussion 

12.30pm Close    

12:35pm– 
1:30pm 

Lunch and networking    
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Meeting commenced: 9:33am (AEST) 

1. Attendance 
Voting Members  
1. Kylie Ahern, STEM Matters 
2. Clare Anstead, Australian Society for 

Parasitology (ASP) 
3. David Aragao, Society of Crystallographers in 

Australia and New Zealand (SCANZ) 
4. Stephen (Harry) Balcombe, Australian Society 

for Fish Biology (ASFB) 
5. Adrian Barnett, Statistical Society of Australia & 

STA Board Member 
6. Sue Barrell, Australian Meteorological and 

Oceanographic Society (AMOS) 
7. Damien Belobrajdic, Nutrition Society of 

Australia (NSA) & STA Board Member  
8. Penny Berents, Australian Marine Science 

Association Inc. (AMSA) 
9. Michael Brown, Astronomical Society of 

Australia (ASA) 
10. Jeremy Brownlie, Genetics Society of Australasia 

(GSA) & STA Vice President 
11. Peter Elford, Australia’s Academic and Research 

Network (AARNet), Australasian eResearch 
Organisations (AeRO) & STA Board Member 

12. Mark Green, Society For Reproductive Biology 
13. Andrew Greentree, Centre for Nanoscale 

BioPhotonics (CNBP) 
14. Anthony Hannan, Australasian Neuroscience 

Society (ANS) 

15. Eric Hanssen, Australian Microscopy & 
Microanalysis Society (AMMS) 

16. John Harvey, Australian Optical Society (AOS) 
17. Kathryn Hassell, Society of Environmental 

Toxicology and Chemistry Australasia (SETAC) 
18. Rebecca Lester, Australian Freshwater Sciences 

Society (AFSS) 
19. Vanessa Melino, Australian Society of Plant 

Scientists (ASPS) 
20. Kelvin Michael, National Tertiary Education 

Union (NTEU) 
21. Alistair Moffat, Computing Research and 

Education Association of Australasia (CORE) 
22. John Morgan, Ecological Society of Australia 

(ESA) 
23. Sam Popovski, CSIRO Staff Association 
24. Robyn Porter, Professionals Australia 
25. Geoff Prince, Australian Mathematical Sciences 

Institute (AMSI) & STA Board Member 
26. Rebecca Ritchie, Baker Heart & Diabetes 

Institute & STA Board Member 
27. Carolyn Semmler, Psychology Foundation of 

Australia 
28. Roger Stapleford, Royal Australian Chemical 

Institute (RACI) 
29. Leann Tilley, Australian Society for Biochemistry 

and Molecular Biology (ASBMB) 

Proxies: 
1. Emma Johnston, STA President - Australian Phenomics Network (APN) (proxy), ARC Centre of Excellence for 

Climate Extremes (CLEX) (proxy), International Ocean Discovery Program (IODP) (proxy), Institute of 
Australian Geographers (IAG) (proxy) 

2. Eileen McLaughlin, STA Board Member - Bioplatforms Australia (proxy), Australian Mammal Society (proxy), 
Institute for Molecular Bioscience (IMB) (proxy) 

3. Branwen Morgan, STA Board Member - Australasian Society for Biomaterials and Tissue Engineering (ASBTE) 
(proxy), The National Computational Infrastructure (NCI) (ANU) (proxy), Pawsey Supercomputing Centre 
(proxy), Women in STEMM Australia (proxy), Australian Society for Microbiology (ASM) (proxy) 

4. Geoff Prince, STA Board Member - Australian Mathematical Society (AustMS) (proxy) Australian Society for 
Operations Research (ASOR) (proxy), Mathematics Education Research Group of Australasia (MERGA) (proxy) 

5. Rebecca Ritchie, STA Board Member - Australian Cardiovascular Alliance (ACvA) (proxy), The Monash 
Biomedicine Discovery Institute (Monash University) (BDI) (proxy), Australasian Society of Clinical and 
Experimental Pharmacologists and Toxicologists (ASCEPT) (proxy), High Blood Pressure Research Council of 
Australia (HBPRCA) (proxy).

Attending (Non Voting): 
Rachel Burton – STA Board Member, Jas Chambers - STA Board Member, Tom Creswell  - STA Board Member, 
Judith Dawes - STA Treasurer,  Zoe Doubleday - STA Board Member, Tanya Ha - STA Board Member, Darren 
Saunders – STA Secretary, Sharath Sriram – Observer, Sumeet Walia – Observer, Kylie Walker – CEO, Dion 
Pretorius - Communications and Policy Manager, Mitchell Piercey - STA Membership & Events Manager 
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Apologies: 
Marc-antoine Sani - Australian Society for Biophysics (ASB), Vikki Marshall - Australasian Genomic Technologies 
Association (AGTA), Michelle Durant - Australian Institute of Nuclear Science and Engineering AINSE Ltd, Marina 
Costelloe – STA Board Member, Katherine Dafforn – STA Board Member, Alan Duffy, STA Board Member, Cathryn 
Trott - STA Board Member.  

2. Conflicts of Interest: 
The register was updated by email in November 2018 and no further conflicts were noted at the meeting. 

3. Minutes of previous AGM: 
Motion: that the minutes of the 2017 Annual General Meeting be adopted. (with a minor amendment to 
note that Coral Warr attended the meeting, but not in a voting capacity) 
Moved:  Robyn Porter  Seconded: Harry Bellcome   Motion: Carried unanimously 

4. President’s Annual Report 
The President summarised her report for the Board, highlighting significant concern over delays to 
announcement of ARC outcomes and development of national interest test. She also noted the need for 
bipartisan approach to supporting science and innovation policies in lead up to federal election. She thanked 
the STA staff and board for their efforts over the year. 

Branwen Morgan questioned what members could do to support advocacy around ARC delay and National 
Interest Test (NIT). Emma Johnston encouraged as many people as possible to directly express concerns over 
delays, retrospective NIT, etc. must be diplomatic and reasonable, focus on security. Kylie Walker suggested 
STA could help with shaping messaging, advice on where to direct correspondence, and welcomed receiving 
case studies that highlight the problem. Emma Johnston noted that messages will be amplified when 
approaches are made in unique language rather than using form letters. 

Carolyn Semmler: questioned the role of the new Science Minister in the ARC funding process? Emma 
Johnston advised that ARC sits under the Education portfolio, but noted that any correspondence on ARC 
delays should be copied to Karen Andrews. 

Andrew Green asked if there were any reports on impact of changes to NHMRC funding? Emma Johnston 
and Kylie Walker advised that no immediate feedback was available but that policy committee will monitor 
the issue and welcomed continual input from members. Sharath Sriram advised that policy committee would 
be particularly interested in examining effects of career breaks on outcomes under new schemes. 

5. CEO’s Annual Report 
The CEO summarised her report, outlining the growth of operations and membership, policy action and 
political/public/business advocacy. She noted the commitment of the board in supporting successful growth 
of the organisation through recent deficit budget. The CEO outlined a continuing focus on growth of 
advocacy and policy action informed by membership through consultation. CEO noted that membership is 
growing after years of decline, and that membership is now being proactively sought by potential new 
members, reflecting confidence in our approach. 

The CEO highlighted that STA is building international networks, as well as the expansion of the Superstars of 
STEM program, all of which build capacity and remit to speak in defence of science locally and internationally 
and build momentum for adoption of evidence-based policy. The CEO also extended recognition and thanks 
to staff and board for efforts throughout the year. 

6. 2017/18 report against operational plan 
The CEO summarised progress against the operational plan and effectiveness in context of strategic aims, 
including addressing points where targets were not achieved (e.g. STEM ambassadors, EDI, membership). 
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Kylie Ahern asked about the possibility of state-based STEM ambassadors as a potential avenue for engaging 
members. Kylie Walker advised that STA does not have resources to support this, but noted that state based 
initiatives are happening organically in SA, NSW, and WA, with advice and support from STA. 

Michael Brown queried the status of Science meets Policymakers and potential ongoing impact on science 
policy. Kylie Walker advised that the grant supporting this event has ended, and that feedback from policy 
makers indicated that they were struggling to find value in the event. A decision was made to progress with 
video-based resources for education. Geoff Prince noted a high turnover of senior public servants (in 
particular in Education/Training) and the importance of continual engagement. Kylie Walker noted that STA 
engages on a daily basis but will continue to seek opportunities. The CEO also noted STA supports 
establishment of STEM PhD fellowships pilot (where STEM PhDs are placed in Federal Government 
departments) and that the scheme is looking to double this cohort in 2019.  

Jas Chambers noted that Inspiring Australia NSW are working with Aus. Industry with respect to funding 
contracts and the approach being one that is consistent with a whole of government approach to funding 
contracts.  

Emma Johnston sought consensus on linking an STA press release on ARC funding to AGM (granted). 

7. Report of the Equity, Diversity & Inclusion Working Group 
Tanya Ha outlined the report of the Equity, Diversity & Inclusion (EDI) Working Group, including the draft 
Diversity and Inclusion Policy template for member organisations. 

Rebecca Lester noted that the Freshwater Sciences Society Indigenous engagement framework could be of 
value to STA. Tanya Ha reinforced the need to expand focus from gender to other areas of diversity and 
noted a lack of existing policies in the sector. 

Sue Barrell suggested being upfront with a benefit statement around EDI initiatives to underscore 
justification and better frame importance of the policy. She offered BOM resources for guidance around 
Indigenous engagement. Emma Johnston called for submission of suggestions from members and thanked 
EDI working group members. 

8. Treasurer’s Report 
The Treasurer presented her report to the board. Kylie Walker outlined the establishment of Finance, Audit 
and Risk Committee (FARC). 
Motion: that the Treasurer’s report be accepted. 
Moved:  Kylie Ahern Seconded: Eileen McLaughlin   Motion: Carried unanimously 

9. Audited Financial Statements and Auditor’s Clearance Letter 2017-18 
Audited financial statements and auditor’s clearance letter for 2017-18 were presented by the Treasurer. 
Motion: that the Audited Financial Statements be accepted. 
Moved:  Rebecca Ritchie Seconded: Kylie Ahern   Motion: Carried unanimously 

10. 2018/19 Budget 
The Budget for 2018/19 was presented. Kylie Walker noted it is a deficit budget to provide for growth, with 
intention to return to surplus budget. Emma Johnston noted difficulty of timing for SmP in the context of a 
pending federal election, hence budget uncertainty around sponsorship etc. Kylie Walker noted a $200k 
foundational sponsorship to run SmP from the Department of Industry, Innovation and Science. 

Branwen Morgan outlined concerns around a crowded market relating to Science meets Business (SmB). 
Kylie Walker responded that there are 10 similar events on the calendar, and that registrations and 
sponsorship for SmB had declined. Also noted that STA is in proactive talks with a potential new partner to 
reinvigorate the event, making it more relevant to industry partners and researchers. 
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11. Membership Report 
The membership report was presented by Jeremy Brownlie (co-chair of Membership Committee), 
highlighting a changing mix of ordinary vs affiliate members and noting the challenge this presents for 
governance structures and representation of members. He also highlighted increasing opportunities for 
member support and benefitsNoted that most recruitment of affiliate members has been through word of 
mouth, while active recruitment is focussed on ordinary members.  

Geoff Prince queried STA’s engagement with science and maths teachers associations. Kylie Walker and 
Jeremy Brownlie advised that both have been approached and declined to apply for membership. Geoff 
Prince asked about opportunities for membership of affiliates to join societies and potential mechanisms. 
Jeremy Brownlie noted the challenge of multi-disciplinary institutes etc. and that it is important to make sure 
members don’t feel STA is impeding recruitment of members by member societies. 

Emma Johnston thanked the committee. 

12. Executive Committee Vacancies 
Emma Johnston invited brief statements from candidates for President Elect who were present at the AGM. 
Brief statements made by Sue Barrell and Jeremy Brownlie. 

Appointment of Returning Officer 
Motion: that Rebecca Ritchie be endorsed as returning officer for exec committee elections at 2018 AGM. 
Moved:  Emma Johnston  Seconded: Robyn Porter  Motion: Carried unanimously 
 
President Elect 
Candidates:  Dr Sue Barrell, Dr Jeremy Brownlie and Professor Elanor Huntington 
Dr Jeremy Brownlie elected 

Motion: that the election of Dr Jeremy Brownlie be endorsed as President Elect 
Moved: Emma Johnston Seconded: Tom Cresswell  Motion: Carried unanimously 

Vice President 
Vice President position is vacated, nominations called from the floor. 
Brief statements from candidates: Ms Tanya Ha and Dr Sue Barrell 
Dr Sue Barrell elected 

Motion: that the election of Sue Barrell be endorsed as Vice President 
Moved:  Emma Johnston Seconded: Eileen McLaughlin  Motion: Carried unanimously 

Secretary 
Candidates: 
Associate Professor Darren Saunders and Ms Tanya Ha (nomination withdrawn at meeting) 
Darren Saunders elected by default 
Motion: that Darren Saunders be endorsed as Secretary 
Moved:  Rebecca Ritchie Seconded:  Mark Green   Motion: Carried unanimously 

Policy Chair 
Candidates Professor Halina Rubinsztein-Dunlop and Associate Professor Sharath Sriram 
Sharath Sriram elected 

Motion: that the election of Sharath Sriram be endorsed as Policy Chair 
Moved:  Geoff Prince  Seconded: Rebecca Lester  Motion: Carried unanimously 
 
Early Career Representative 
Candidate  Dr Sumeet Walia 
Sumeet Walia elected by default 
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Motion: that the election of Sumeet Walia be endorsed as Early Career Representative 
Moved:  Rebecca Ritchie Seconded: Robyn Porter  Motion: Carried unanimously 

14. Auditor Re-Appointment 
Discussion brought forward from Board meeting. The Treasurer outlined candidates/quotes for auditor, 
notes that existing auditor (Synergy Group) has been in place for 4 years. Notes that new accounting system 
is more streamlined and should simplify auditing process. Recommends Vincents as they have worked with 
STA and have provided lowest quote. 

Adrian Barnett queried why the Vincents quote is half the price of others? 

Emma Johnston advised that Synergy quote is based on existing costs, but that these are likely to be lowered 
through electronic accounting system. Notes that BCB have strong reputation, and that there may be some 
risk with new/smaller organisation (Vincents). 

Geoff Price asked how long Vincents have been in business and what due diligence was undertaken. Kylie 
Walker advised that Vincents Canberra office has been in operation for ~12 months, but that they are part of 
a national network franchise model in existence for 10 yrs. 

Motion: that Vincents be appointed as auditors for the 2018-19 financial year. 
Moved:  Emma Johnston Seconded:  Kylie Ahern   Motion: Carried unanimously 

15. STEM Associations and Societies Review 
Exec summary was presented by the CEO, who noted that STA would work to build a suite of tools and 
workshops for members to build capacity, informed by the review. 
Commended by Geoff Prince. 

16. Other Business 
N/A 

Meeting closed 12:49pm 
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STA President’s Annual Report: 2019 
Professor Emma Johnston AO 

2019 has been another excellent year for Science and Technology Australia. We continued to grow our 
membership, we initiated new programs, we ran an election campaign and we stayed true to our core 
mission of connecting industry, government and communities with the STEM sector.  

Despite this success, there remains a clear need for greater visibility of the STEM sector and more 
engagement with government, industry, and community. The 2019 Federal Budget revealed cuts to R&D via 
the Research Block grant, and caps on domestic Higher Education places. Moreover, we remain concerned 
that overall investment in research and development will continue to plummet as business participation via 
the R&D Tax incentive declines. While the rest of the world is increasing their spending in research and 
development, Australia is falling behind. 

In the lead up to the federal election, STA ran our second President and CEO Forum, which was well 
attended by the leadership of our member organisations. At this meeting we heard significant commitments 
from both Labor and the Greens to supporting STEM and less substantial commitments from the 
Liberal/National coalition. STA was actively engaged in increasing the visibility of STEM during the election 
campaign and we gathered a great deal of useful information on the major party positions via our election 
survey. We monitored announcements during the election period and the survey was released with a 
summary document that had major uptake via social media and was featured on Radio National. This 
comparison was widely distributed and remains a relatively accurate assessment of the party positions post-
election. Members were also sent election resources for the STA campaign including guidance for letters and 
social media, and videos featuring innovative businesses in marginal electorates from around Australia, 
which have been viewed >75,000 times on Facebook.  

As you will know, the coalition was returned to office on May 18. We extended our congratulations to Prime 
Minister Scott Morrison and his government and formal letters of congratulations were sent out to relevant 
ministers as they were confirmed, as well as shadow ministers and minor party leaders. In September, 
together with the incoming President and CEO, I met with the following political leaders and/or their staff: - 
the Shadow Minister for Defence and co-chair Parliamentary Friends of Science Richard Marles, Shadow 
Minister for Science Brendan O’Connor, Minister for Employment, Skills, Small and Family Business Michaelia 
Cash, Greens Science spokesperson Adam Bandt, Opposition Leader Anthony Albanese, the Minister for 
Industry, Science and Technology Karen Andrews and the Minister for Education Dan Tehan. 

Topics for discussion differed slightly for each meeting and we were able to provide follow-up briefing 
papers on topics of specific interest to some members. However, central themes in each meeting were 
research integrity, pipeline problems created by the caps on undergraduate places, and the establishment of 
a research translation fund. An early outcome from these meetings included enthusiasm from the Education 
Minister for our proposal to release the results of ARC grants under embargo to enable security and planning 
(similar to the approach by the NHMRC). We are very pleased to report that the Minister immediately 
accepted this suggestion and you may be aware that Future Fellows and DECRA grant recipients have since 
been notified under embargo.  

Over the year we submitted 8 responses to reviews/inquiries and published 32 media releases. We are now 
generally considered by both media and senior political leadership to be a “go to” organisation for comment 
on science and technology policy developments. We are also happy to see the development of strong 
relationships between our pilot STEM Ambassadors and their respective representatives.  

In more recent public engagements, STA has been watching with concern (and responding to), public attacks 
by some Liberal and National Party MPs and Senators against evidence-based reports and policy, and 

https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/parties-to-set-themselves-apart-with-science/


Attachment B 

8 
 

attempts to undermine the value of scientific evidence underpinning legislation. One example of this was the 
Nationals Senator Matt Canavan backing the call by the Queensland Liberal Party for an “Office of Science 
Quality Assurance” to review scientific reports before they are handed to government. It’s important to note 
there was no call for a review of all reports handed to government, only those based on science.  

In response we published an opinion piece on the need for the “Separation of Science and the State” and 
this spurred coverage on the PM program, Crikey, and Campus Morning Mail.  We argued the critical need 
for a culture in which scientists are able to share what they know with others and to provide frank and 
fearless advice to the government and to the people. STA also co-signed a response with the National 
Research and Innovation Alliance on the issue of Research quality and integrity.  

As this is my final STA report as President, I must say that I am immensely proud to have supported our 80-
plus member organisations to flourish; to share their achievements; to connect with government, and to 
build equity and diversity in STEM. I am also indebted to the STA staff, Executive, Board and committee 
members for their unwavering support as we grew in scale, complexity, profile and impact. I attribute much 
of our recent success to the leadership of our departing CEO, Kylie Walker and the immense energy she 
inspired in our professional staff and volunteers.  

I would like to acknowledge and congratulate the following professional staff: Dion Pretorius 
(Communications and Policy Manager), Mitchell Piercey (Membership and Events Manager), Brodie Steel 
(Program Manager - Superstars of STEM), Peter Derbyshire (Policy Officer), Shannon Wong (Membership 
Officer), Georgie Ovin (EA to the CEO) , Georgia Elliott (Superstars of STEM Program Officer), Leesa Maroske 
(Communications Manager) and Kyle McCann (Digital Officer), as well as our accountant, Penny Thomson. 

While the professional staff have excelled in their contributions, they did so with the support and guidance 
of a committed group of Exec and Board members, many of whom took on substantial additional roles in 
policy, EDI, finance and risk, and membership committees. I would like to particularly acknowledge the 
chairs of those committees for their excellent work: Sharath Sriram (Chair of the Policy Committee), Jeremy 
Brownlie (Chair of the Membership Committee), Judith Dawes (Chair of the Finance, Audit and Risk 
Committee) and Tanya Ha and Darren Saunders (Co-chairs of the Equity, Diversity and Inclusion Working 
Group). In addition, many of our Executive and Board members have contributed to the success of our 
calendar of events through direct involvement and promotion. I congratulate and thank the outgoing 
Executive and Board members.  

Finally, I leave my Presidential post, proud of our achievements to date, and with great confidence in the 
organisation’s future.  
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Chief Executive Officer’s Annual Report: 2019 
Kylie Walker 

It’s my pleasure to present the CEO’s annual report for 2018/19, and my final report as CEO of STA. 

Once more Science & Technology Australia’s year has been marked by growing visibility, growing 
achievement, and growing capacity to serve and support our members. 

It’s been a pleasure to work with the Executive Committee, Cluster Representatives and our skilled and 
dedicated staff to grow STA’s member support capabilities, public profile, programs, membership and 
professional reputation. 

We’ve developed our work against the strategy to grow and develop through to 2022, including significantly 
enhancing our capacity to support members to thrive; building our membership base and deepening our 
representation of the STEM sector; expanding our program offerings to more STEM professionals; and 
consolidating our growing reputation as a leader of equity, diversity and inclusion in STEM. 

At the same time we’ve continued to make improvements to the professionalism, governance, risk 
management and accountability of the organisation.  

We’ve completed the financial year with two years’ operating budget in the bank despite a bottom-line loss 
of $231,000, due to the unexpected and unavoidable deferral of Science meets Parliament into the 2019/20 
financial year (caused by the federal election followed by a re-organisation of the parliamentary sitting 
calendar). 

Below I’ve summarised the year’s achievements against the 2018/19 operational plan. I’m proud of what 
we’ve achieved. It would not have been possible without the generous support of our volunteer Board – in 
particular the Executive Committee whose passion and professionalism supports STA to thrive. I’m indebted 
to the President, Emma Johnston, for her vision, leadership, and the enormous amount of time and energy 
she has dedicated to the role. I have every confidence in Dr Jeremy Brownlie’s forthcoming leadership of the 
organisation: STA is in very safe hands.  

This is my final report to STA, as I step down at the end of December 2019 to become the CEO of the 
Australian Academy of Technology and Engineering. It’s been a career highlight to work with Emma to lead 
STA through a time of growth and reinvention, and to create a values-driven culture of inclusivity with our 
small but extremely talented workforce.  

It’s been a pleasure to serve the members of STA and to facilitate greater connection with and support for 
science and technology in the broader Australian community. I have been honoured to work with STA’s 
members, board and staff, and wish you and the organisation every success for the future. 

1. The leading voice for science and technology in Australia 
1.1 Current and relevant policy platform 

STA created a member- and community-engagement strategy to support the prioritisation of science and 
technology for the Federal Election. Outcomes included strong social media engagement and media 
coverage, mentions of science in final pre-election speeches by leaders of both major parties, and invitations 
to consult on science and technology policy platforms for both major parties as well as the Greens. The 
publication of the election survey of major parties’ science platforms drew a record crowd of 5,500+ to our 
website; the #SolveitWithScience hashtag reached more than 840,000 people via Twitter alone; the videos 
have been viewed more than 75,000 times on Facebook.  
Following the Federal Election, we wrote to and received personalised responses from more than 30 MPs 
and Senators in relevant portfolios and electorates. Follow-up meetings were held with Ministers, Shadow 
Ministers and relevant spokespeople in September.  
Led by Policy Chair Sharath Sriram, the Policy Committee has worked through the year to ensure STA and its 
members’ voices were heard in the following inquiries, reviews and consultations:  
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Australian and New Zealand Standard Research Classification Review  report pending 

Implementation of the National Science and Research Priorities   report pending 

Sexual Harassment in Australian Workplaces     report pending 

Performance-Based Funding for the Commonwealth Grant Scheme  recommendations adopted 

Regional, Rural and Remote Education      recommendations adopted 

2019/20 Pre-Budget Submission      partially adopted 

Status of the Teaching Profession      report pending 

Effectiveness of the current temporary skilled visa system 
in targeting genuine skills shortages      not adopted 

Inquiry into the Treasury Laws Amendment     not adopted 

Inquiry into the Higher Education Support Amendments    partially adopted 

Independent review of South Australia’s moratorium on the 
cultivation of Genetically Modified (GM) food crops    recommendations adopted 

Women in STEM Decadal Plan       recommendations adopted 

Medical Research Future Fund Priorities     partially adopted 

2021 Census        not adopted 

1.2 Leveraged communications strategy  
STA comfortably exceeded almost all of its communications targets for the year, with 1,122 news media clips 
across the year (compared with a target of 700), 1,325 new followers on Facebook, 4,266 new followers on 
Twitter, and more than 88,000 unique visitors to the website. Our LinkedIn following also grew by 1,000 and 
the CEO, STEM Ambassadors, and Policy Committee members were supported to publish six articles. 

There was no negative coverage. News media highlights for the year included:  
• NAIDOC Week: STA partnered with Deadly Science and founder Corey Tutt to promote his work 

getting science themed books into regional and rural schools. We reached thousands of readers 
online, and STA supported Corey to speak with a range of major media outlets including ABC TV, ABC 
Radio National, ABC Canberra, and SBS.  

• The federal election, with coverage across Radio National How do the major parties’ STEM 
commitments stack up?, The Conversation STEM is worth investing in, but Australia’s major parties 
offer scant details on policy and funding, and various ABC radio news and talk shows. 

• Launch of the Superstars of STEM program II 

• Science meets Business 2018 

  

https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/STA-Submission-Australian-and-New-Zealand-Standard-Research-Classification-Review.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/STA-Submission-Implementation-of-the-National-Science-and-Research-Priorities.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/STA-Submission-Sexual-harassment-in-the-workplace-.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/STA-Performance-Based-Funding-Submission.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/STA-Regional-Rural-and-Remote-Education-Submission.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/02/2019-pre-budget-submission-Final-.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/STA-Submission-Status-of-the-Teaching-Profession.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/STA-Submission-Inquiry-into-the-effectiveness-of-the-current-skilled-visa-.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/STA-Submission-Inquiry-into-the-effectiveness-of-the-current-skilled-visa-.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/STA-Submission-Inquiry-into-the-Treasury-Laws-Amendment-Research-tax-incentive-Final.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/STA-submission-Inquiry-into-the-Higher-Education-Support-Amendments-.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/STA-GM-crop-moratorium-Submission-.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/STA-GM-crop-moratorium-Submission-.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/STA-Women-in-STEM-Decadal-Plan-Submission.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/STA-submission-MRFF-priorities.pdf
https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/wp-content/uploads/2018/07/2021-Census-Review-Submission.pdf
https://twitter.com/BreakfastNews/status/1149843397777055744
https://www.abc.net.au/radionational/programs/breakfast/the-deadly-science-project:-empowering-indigenous-kids/11294918
https://www.abc.net.au/radionational/programs/breakfast/the-deadly-science-project:-empowering-indigenous-kids/11294918
https://www.sbs.com.au/news/audiotrack/deadly-science-gives-children-remote-schools-tools-achieve-their-dreams
https://www.abc.net.au/radionational/programs/breakfast/how-do-the-major-parties-stem-commitments-stack-up/11090070
https://www.abc.net.au/radionational/programs/breakfast/how-do-the-major-parties-stem-commitments-stack-up/11090070
https://theconversation.com/stem-is-worth-investing-in-but-australias-major-parties-offer-scant-details-on-policy-and-funding-113739
https://theconversation.com/stem-is-worth-investing-in-but-australias-major-parties-offer-scant-details-on-policy-and-funding-113739
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2. Key connector for scientists, politics, industry and media 
2.1 Run profitable headline events 

Science meets Parliament 
The date of Science meets Parliament 2019 changed twice, due to the federal election and then due to a 
change in the Parliamentary Sitting calendar, resulting in no Science meets Parliament during the 2018/19 
financial year. 

Science meets Business 
The final Science meets Business was held on 11 October 2018 in Brisbane. Delegate numbers and 
sponsorship were down on the previous year, resulting in a small profit of $21,166 (compared with a 
projected profit of $114K). 

Delegate feedback was strong, with 87% of respondents reporting they pitched their idea or problem to 
another delegate and 78% of respondents saying they made 3-5 new connections. 

‘Everything was valuable. I particularly liked the session Space, Emerging Opportunities. I was amazed by the 
challenge of data analysis and storage for SKA project, and the solutions that are proposed. I also enjoyed 
the closing session with Rita Arrigo. Fantastic to know all the AI projects from Microsoft.’ 

 ‘A really fantastic event with a good mix of researchers, government and Industry. The Industry speakers in 
particular were fantastic and gave a good insight into the vision and direction industry is taking.’ 

However, due to declining interest and profitability, and a proliferation of like events, the board decided to 
make 2018 Science meets Business its last. 

AFR Future Briefings 
STA has sought to build on the Science meets Business model and evolve it to suit the current market. To this 
end STA has formed a partnership with the Australian Financial Review (AFR) to develop a new event series: 
AFR Future Briefings with Science & Technology Australia: where business meets science. 

Consisting of four high-level events across Sydney and Melbourne, the series will be held in calendar 2020 
and focus on science, technology, transformation and the future of work.  

Through a series of VIP breakfast events, we will invite business leaders to learn about the scientific and 
technological advances that are poised to shape the future of our economy and our workplaces - and the 
opportunities for forward-thinking organisations right now. 

2.2 Nurture intra- and inter-sector networks 
Five targeted networking opportunities were held through the year for members, partners, and sector 
leaders, in Adelaide, Brisbane, Canberra, Melbourne, and two in Sydney. These events have continued to 
grow in popularity and impact, with members reporting strong value in attending. 

3. Effective influencer for Science and Technology 
3.1 Successful STEM Ambassadors program 
The inaugural STEM Ambassadors program had a range of successful outcomes – please see the report at 
Attachment E for details. 
 
3.2 Strategy to put STEM on the federal election agenda 
See item 1.1 

3.3 Assist STEM communities to engage more effectively with all Australian governments 
STA staff and board members met with state political leaders and STEM leaders to support state-based 
STEM/political engagement in Queensland, South Australia, and NSW. 

https://sta.eventsair.com/science-meets-parliament-2019/
https://sta.eventsair.com/science-meets-parliament-2019/
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4. Valued amplifier for STEM professional organisations 
4.1 Assist members to grow their membership, profile, and influence 
STA conducted and published the first national review of STEM Associations and Societies, aimed at 
identifying factors in success and growth of STEM associations, and examining diversity statistics and 
practices for STEM associations. This report was made available to members. 

Seven practical how-to guides were published for members’ exclusive use, including template EDI policies. 

STA held Become a Super STEM Communicator Workshop for STA members, Pawsey and NCI.  

STA’s Communications strategy incorporated measures to amplify and raise awareness of members and 
their activities through social media, the website, newsletter, and media activities. 

One full-day face-to-face member workshop was held (free to members) featuring practical tips and 
guidance from professionals and peers, in direct response to member requests, meetings and the member 
survey.  

The member benefits program continued to grow in offering, but member utilisation was low. 

4.2 Convene member leadership 
The second annual President and CEO forum was held in Sydney in May, and was strongly attended by three-
quarters of members. The Minister, Shadow Minister, and Greens spokesperson for science all attended and 
spoke at the event. Feedback from members was strong. 

5. Championing Science & Technology workforce diversity 
5.1 Grow Superstars of STEM 
Round one of the Superstars of STEM program wound up and 60 participants were recruited for round two. 

The first workshop was held (with strong feedback from participants) and two new major partners secured 
for the program. 

Early feedback from round 2 participants has been strong, and engagement statistics for round 1 participants 
continue to grow. See the details here. 

Partnership, application, and registration income exceeded expectations. 

5.2 Provide tools and guidance for science and technology associations and societies to become more 
diverse 
A range of EDI template policies were created for exclusive use of members, and early uptake was strong, 
with several member organisations reporting the templates had made creating their own policies a much 
quicker and easier process than anticipated. 

5.3 Become a thought-leading organisation on equity, diversity and inclusion 
STA supported Deadly Science to collect and distribute science books to Indigenous students in remote 
Australia (for NAIDOC week). 

The first national survey of sexual harassment in STEM was held to inform STA’s submission to the Sex 
Discrimination Commissioner’s report into workplace sexual harassment. 

The CEO spoke about barriers to inclusion for LGBTIQ+ scientists in a range of fora including the Department 
of Environment, Geoscience Australia, and at the first national Queers in STEM Symposium in Melbourne. 

STA met with the Queers in STEM network to commence planning to grow the network nationally. 

STA developed a list of Indigenous champions and board members within member organisations, to support 
the formation of the first Indigenous Science Association. 

https://scienceandtechnologyaustralia.org.au/14130-2/


   Attachment C 

14 
 

6. Engage, empower and mobilise all STEM professionals 
6.1 Create opportunities for deeper engagement between researchers and industry 
See item 2.1 re. AFR Future Briefings.  

STA’s partnerships and relationships with STEM-interested and involved corporates continued to grow 
through the year including through Superstars of STEM, Science meets Parliament, Science meets Business, 
and regular networking events. It was decided to establish a new position, Head of Partnerships, to more 
strategically manage these relationships going forward. 

7. Linking Australian science and technology internationally 
7.1 Develop international partnerships and networks 
STA mentored the establishment of the first Canadian Science meets Parliament, and the President-elect 
attended and spoke at the event on the organisation’s behalf. 

The President and CEO visited and presented at the American Association for the Advancement of Science 
meeting, re. Science meets Parliament and the Superstars of STEM. 

Discussion with New Zealand’s Chief Scientist and other senior STEM sector leaders in New Zealand 
continues re. possible establishment of Science meets Parliament NZ and Superstars of STEM NZ. 

8. Operational excellence 
8.1 Nurture a strong and growing membership  
See membership report at Attachment I. 

8.2 Meet commitments on time and to budget 
All reporting, grant, and other external commitments were met. 

Despite growth in membership, Superstars of STEM income, partnerships and registration income, STA 
finished the financial year with a $230K loss due to the deferral of Science meets Parliament. We continue to 
hold two years’ operating budget in the bank. 

Please see the Treasurer’s report at Attachment F for further information. 

The Finance, Audit and Risk Committee was established and provided outstanding high-level advice. A new 
auditor, Vincent’s, was secured and the 2018/19 audit was the most thorough yet undertaken for STA. 

8.3 Be an employer of choice 
STA introduced a wellness program, UpRise, which can function as a traditional Employee Assistance 
Program if necessary but approaches emotional and mental wellbeing from a preventative perspective with 
ongoing learning. 

Staff continue to report high levels of satisfaction with the workplace culture, flexibility, inclusivity, and 
supportive, friendly approach to managing balance. 
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  STRATEGIC PRIORITY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATOR 

Q1 TARGET Q2 TARGET Q3 TARGET Q4 TARGET FY TARGET 

 
1 

 
THE LEADING VOICE FOR SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY IN AUSTRALIA 

1.1 Maintain a current and 
relevant policy 
platform that informs 
STA’s advocacy 

Policy platform is 
reviewed, 
communicated and 
updated 

Policy updates 
considered; 
Platform 
summarised for 
publication  
 
Updates 
considered by 
committee, 
platform not 
summarised 

Annual review of 
policy platform 
undertaken in 
consultation with 
members 
Final stage of 
annual review in 
progress, ready 
for publication 
next quarter 

Updates made 
where necessary 
 
 
 
Annual review 
finalised: edits 
still in progress 

Updates made 
where necessary 
 
 
 
Policy platform 
live and 
updated 
regularly 

Platform is 
current; has been 
communicated to 
stakeholders; Has 
been fully 
reviewed  
 
Policy platform 
finalised and 
accessible 

  Submissions made to 
relevant inquiries 
and consultations 

5 submissions; 
3 invitations to 
further consult; 
2 briefings for 
Senator/Dept 
head 

6 submissions 
made 

4 submissions 
made 

2 submissions 
made 

Timely,  
consultative 
effective 
submissions to all 
relevant inquiries  

1.2 Leveraged 
communications 
strategy to achieve 
higher visibility for 
STA and its members 

Strong presence in 
the news media  

100 
 
375 clips total 

250 (350 total) 
 
584 clips total 

250 (600 total) 
 
828 total 

100 (700 total) 
 
1,122 total 

700 clips 
 
1,122 total 
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       Increase Facebook 
followers (3,985 at 
start) 

300 new 
315 new 
(4300 total) 

350 new 
332 new 
(4632 total) 

300 new 
436 
(5068 total) 

350 new 
242 
(5310 total) 

1,300 new 
followers  
1,325 total new 

  Increase Twitter 
followers (14,002 at 
start) 

1100 new  
1187 new 
(15,189 total) 

1250 new 
1,275 
(16,464 total) 

1100 new 
875 
(17,339 total) 

1250 new 
929 
(18,268 total) 

4,700 new 
followers 
4,266 total new 

  Increase unique 
website users  

10,000 users 
 
 
24,138 users 

12,500 users 
 
 
22,728 users 

10,000 users 
 
 
15,433 users 

12,500 users 
 
 
30,580 users 

50,000 unique 
users  
88,788 unique 
users 

  Grow LinkedIn reach 
by supporting STA 
leadership to build a 
following on issues of 
importance to STA 

Develop LinkedIn 
growth strategy 
using Board 
members and CEO 
as key connectors 
 
3 LinkedIn 
articles 
published for 
SmB promotions 

Generate 2 
LinkedIn articles 
for leaders to 
publish 
 
 
All STEM 
Ambassadors 
supported to 
publish (2 
articles live)  

Generate 2 
LinkedIn articles 
for leaders to 
publish 
 
One STEM 
Ambassador 
supported to 
publish, one 
leader published 

Generate 2 
LinkedIn articles 
for leaders to 
publish 
 
Policy 
Committee 
sharing election 
content (8 
instances), no 
articles 

Support STA 
leaders to publish 
at least 6 LinkedIn 
articles; grow 
STA’s visibility 
and network on 
LinkedIn 
 
6 articles; 1,003 
followers 

  Review social media 
engagement strategy 
to ensure platforms 
are relevant and 
optimised 
 

Environmental 
scan of emerging 
social media; 
recommendations 
made  

 Recommendations 
of scan 
implemented 
 
Implemented 

 Social media 
strategy is 
relevant and 
effective 
 
Achieved 
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Complete. To be 
presented at Nov 
board  

      STRATEGIC PRIORITY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS 

Q1 TARGET Q2 TARGET Q3 TARGET Q4 TARGET FY TARGET 

 
2 
 

 
KEY CONNECTOR FOR SCIENTISTS, POLITICS, INDUSTRY AND MEDIA 

2.1 Run profitable 
headline events to 
high standard of 
professionalism 

SmP meets or 
exceeds profit  
expectations 
 

Previous Sponsors 
approached and 
25% secured 
($35K) 
 
Previous 
sponsors 
approached and 
37.5% secured 
($56,595) 

New Sponsors 
approached, 
previous followed 
up. Rego open 
($110K 
sponsorship, $20K 
rego)  
Event postponed 
to 08/19. 
Registration to 
open 03/19. 
57% of 
sponsorship 
target secured 
($97,295) 

Final Sponsors 
secured and 
registration closes 
($25K 
sponsorship, 
$110K rego) 
78% of 
sponsorship 
target secured 
($132,450) 
Rego open,  2.5% 
of target ($3450) 

      
96% of 
sponsorship 
target secured 
($163,450) 
37% of 
registration 
target 
($51,898) 

SmP not held this 
financial year. 
 
(Profit 
undetermined as 
event income and 
expense spread 
over two FY’s) 

  Positive feedback 
from SmP 
participants  

N/A N/A N/A 
      

Target not 
achieved: SmP 
not held this 
financial year. 

Delegates have a 
good experience; 
recommend SmP 
to colleagues 
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 SmP not held this 
financial year 

  SmB meets or 
exceeds profit  
expectations 

Sponsors 
approached and 
75% secured. 
Registration open 
($45K sponsors, 
$18K rego) 
Sponsorship 
$24,475, 
Registration 
$14,900. 

Final Sponsors 
secured and 
registration closes 
($25K sponsors, 
$18K registration) 
 
All income in Q1. 
 

  $102,000 profit 
 
$20,377 profit – 
lower rego and 
sponsorship 
than expected 

  Positive feedback 
from SmB 
participants  

N/A Delegates rate 
SmB 8.5/10 or 
higher. 90% 
would 
recommend. 
61% would 
attend again. 
52% would 
recommend to 
colleague 

  Delegates have a 
good experience; 
recommend SmB 
to colleagues 
 
Target not met: 
recommend 
reviewing and 
exploring 
alternatives 

2.2  Nurture intra- and 
inter-sector networks 

Support/develop 
partnerships and 
collaborations to 
strengthen STEM 
networks 

Nothing to report Nothing to report Nothing to report  As opportunities 
arise. 
No action on this 
item: 
recommend 
review 
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  Create networking  
opportunities for STA 
members 

One member 
networking opp 
1 - Sydney 

One member 
networking opp 
1 – Brisbane 
2 - Melbourne 

One member 
networking opp 
1 – Sydney 
 

One member 
networking opp  
1 – Canberra 

4 member 
networking 
opportunities 
Target exceeded  

      STRATEGIC PRIORITY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS 

Q1 TARGET Q2 TARGET Q3 TARGET Q4 TARGET FY TARGET 

 
3 
 

 
EFFECTIVE INFLUENCER FOR SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY 

3.1 Build a successful 
STEM Ambassadors 
program 
 
 

Program is running 
effectively and ready 
to grow 

Inaugural 
participants 
identified 
 
Participants 
identified; 
training 
commenced 

Training delivered 
 
 
Training 
delivered 

75% of meetings 
complete (30/40) 
27 meetings 
complete 

Planning for 
second intake 
finalised, 
applications 
open 
Planning and 
launch shifted 
to align with 
SmP 

10 STEM 
Ambassadors in 
action; ready to 
grow to 20 
 
STA ready to 
grow to 20 
Ambassadors in 
2020 

3.2 
 

Create and implement 
a strategy to put STEM 
on the federal election 
agenda  

Strategy and 
collateral has been 
rolled out to 
membership 

Election campaign 
strategy drafted, 
circulated for 
feedback 
(membership and 
Board) 
Done 

Strategy finalised, 
circulated; ready 
to be implemented  
 
Strategy 
circulated; 
implementation 
commenced  

Election update 
format finalised 
and mail-outs 
ready to start 

Strategy 
implemented 
 
Implemented 

STEM 
commitments 
proactively 
outlined by major 
parties and 
prominent 
candidates 
 
Major parties 
outlined 
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commitment for 
STA audience; 
and at STA 
President and 
CEO Forum 

  Membership is 
engaged and 
proactive 

Members give 
feedback on 
strategy and 
implementation 
plan  
 
Feedback 
received from 
20% of members 

Once election is 
called, 6 election 
updates sent; min 
50% of members 
contribute to 
campaign 
 
No election yet 
called 

Once election is 
called, 6 election 
updates sent; min 
50% of members 
contribute to 
campaign 
 
No election yet 
called 

Members 
provided 
summary of 
campaign and 
participate in 
advocacy post 
election 
 
High 
engagement 
(50+% open 
rates of 
updates), 
summary 
provided 

Successfully 
engage with 
members as 
outlined at 
President and CEO 
Forum; deliver on 
our plans and 
promises 
95% of surveyed 
members found 
campaign useful 
and relevant 

3.3 Assist STEM 
communities to 
engage more 
effectively with all 
Australian 
governments 

Support state-based 
STEM communities 
to engage with state 
govts 

Support and 
advice given re. 
one state-based 
engagement 
strategy 
Target not met 

Support and 
advice given re. 
one state-based 
engagement 
strategy 
Supported 
establishment of 

Support and 
advice given re. 
one state-based 
engagement 
strategy 
Support and 
advice given to 
SA 

Support and 
advice given re. 
one state-based 
engagement 
strategy 
City of 
Townsville and 
Townsville 

Support and 
advice given re. 
four state 
engagement 
strategies 
 
3 State 
engagement 
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Parlt Friends of 
Science in NSW 

STEM 
community 
engaged 

strategies 
supported 

      STRATEGIC PRIORITY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS 

Q1 TARGET Q2 TARGET Q3 TARGET Q4 TARGET FY TARGET 

 
4 

 
VALUED AMPLIFIER FOR STEM PROFESSIONAL ORGANISATIONS 
 

4.1 Assist members to 
grow their 
membership, profile, 
and influence 

Finalise research into 
status of sci & tech 
societies 
 

Research 
underway 
 
Research 
commenced: 
survey to be 
distributed in 
October 

Report completed 
 
Report out for 
comment before 
finalising and 
general 
circulation.  

Results used to 
develop member 
workshops 
 
Consultation 
finalised and 
report ready to 
circulate in Q4. 

Workshops 
commenced 
 
Workshops 
postpone to Q1 
FY19/20 due to 
work required 
in restaging of 
Science meets 
Parliament.  

Research 
completed; 
learnings rolled 
out to members 
 
Research 
complete with 
report circulated 
to members. 
Additional 
resources being 
developed. 

  Create workshops 
and online resources 
to assist members to 
grow 

3 new how-to 
guides published 
 
2 published and 
2 ready to 
publish 

3 new how-to 
guides; 
One workshop 
 
1 Workshop Bris 
10 October 
2 how-to guides 
published 

3 new how-to 
guides published 
No how-to guides 
published  
1 ready to 
publish and 1 
ready for review. 

3 new how-to 
guides 
published; 
One member 
workshop 
2 guides 
published, 1 

12 new how-to 
guides published; 
two member 
workshops 
7 how-to guides 
published 
1 Workshop  
held 
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ready for 
review, and 
0 member 
workshops held 

  Develop a strong and 
relevant member 
benefits program 

10 new benefit 
partners 
identified, scoped 
and approached 
 
6 new partners 
approach or re-
approached. 3 
new partners 
signed on.  

2 new benefit 
partners signed on 
to the program 
 
Program reviewed 
to ensure 
relevance 
 
0 new partners 
approach or re-
approached 

1 new benefit 
partners signed on 
to the program 
 
1 new partner 
approach, 0 new 
partners signed 

2 new benefit 
partners signed 
on to the 
program 
 
3 new partner 
approach or re-
approached, 0 
new partners 
signed 
 

5 new benefit 
partners; 
members are 
utilising each 
partner 
3 new partners 
signed, member 
utilisation low 
 

  Develop resources to 
support member-
policy interaction 

Suite of 4 video 
resources 
produced 
Recorded and 
produced in 
draft form.  

Members engaged 
and viewing 
resources 
Published: 
member 
engagement not  
commenced  

Resources viewed 
minimum 500 
times 
Engagement 
commenced: 
resources 
viewed 250 
times 

Resources 
viewed 
minimum 800 
times 
Resources 
viewed 432 
times 
(cumulative) 

Resources 
produced and in 
use by broad 
audience 
 
Resources 
viewed 432 
times by 
members 

4.2 Convene member 
leadership 

Hold the 2nd annual 
CEO and Presidents 
Forum  

Plan themes and 
goals for Forum 
Theme set: 
“Engaging the 

Forum date set 
for 27 March in 
Sydney.  

Communicate 
with members to 
save the date 

Hold Forum; 
communicate 
outcomes to 
members 

More than 70% of 
members attend 
Forum 
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new 
Government”  

President and 
CEO Forum held 

8 updates sent 
during and 
after election 

73% of members  
represented at 
the Forum 

      STRATEGIC PRIORITY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS 

Q1 TARGET Q2 TARGET Q3 TARGET Q4 TARGET FY TARGET 

 
5 

 
CHAMPIONING SCIENCE & TECHNOLOGY WORKFORCE DIVERSITY 
 

5.1 Grow Superstars of 
STEM 

Stage a successful 
second round of 
program; continue to 
engage inaugural 
Superstars 

Recruitment for 
round 2 
commenced 
 
Recruitment 
commenced; 
judging in 
progress  

Recruitment 
completed; 
program planning 
completed; alumni 
program 
commenced 
 
Recruitment 
finalised, new 
cohort 
announced.  2 
partners 
secured. Alumni 
engaged through 
ad hoc 
opportunties.  

Training 
commenced; two 
sponsors secured 
 
Superstars have 
had a 1:1 session 
with a career 
strategist; 1st 
workshop 
delivered.  
3 partners 
secured.     

Mentor program 
commenced 
 
 
91% have been 
matched with 
their mentor.  
Replacements 
being sought 
for mentors 
who withdrew 
from the 
program due to 
change of role. 

New recruits in 
training; alumni 
engaged; 
reputation and 
impact of program 
is growing; $60K 
sponsorship  
Training 
delivered as 
scheduled; 
reputation and 
impact of 
program 
growing; 
sponsorship 
target exceeded. 

5.2 Provide tools and 
guidance for sci & tech 
bodies to become 
more diverse 

Create diversity 
guidelines for S&T 
societies and 
associations 

Guidelines created 
Enviro scan 
completed; 

Member roll-out 
commenced 

Roll-out and 
workshops 
EDI generic 
policy template 

Follow up with 
disengaged 
members 

Guidelines 
completed and 
implementation 
commenced  
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resources 
gathered 

Draft EDI generic 
policy presented 
at AGM 

available to 
members 

Tracking 
member 
engagement 
and 
highlighting  
resources to  
less engaged 
(resulting in 
retention of at 
least 1 high risk 
member).  

 
Guidelines 
complete and 
member 
engagement 
strategy in place 

5.3 Become a thought-
leading organisation 
on equity, diversity 
and inclusion 

Role model and 
communicate 
publicly re. EDI in 
STEM 

Review internal 
EDI policies and 
adjust to meet 
best practice 
 
Complete 

Seek 3 
opportunities to 
publicly promote 
EDI in STEM 
Complete 

Seek 4 
opportunities to 
publicly promote 
EDI in STEM 
Complete 

Seek 3 
opportunities  to 
publicly promote 
EDI in STEM 
Complete 

Role model best 
practice EDI and 
communicate 
publicly min. 10 
occasions re. EDI 
in STEM 
Target met 

 STRATEGIC PRIORITY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS 

Q1 TARGET Q2 TARGET Q3 TARGET Q4 TARGET FY TARGET 

 
6 

 
ENGAGING, EMPOWERING AND MOBILISING ALL STEM PROFESSIONALS 

6.1 
 
 

Create opportunities 
for deeper 
engagement between 
researchers and 
industry 

CRM-supported 
engagement strategy 
is created and in use 

Scoping 
commenced for 
opportunities to 
support research-
industry 
engagement 

Relationships built 
with 2 new 
corporates 
Est connections 
with 4 new 
corporates; 

Relationships built 
with 2 new 
corporates 
Consolidated 
relationships 
with corp 

Relationships 
built with 2 new 
corporates 
Est connections 
with 3 new 
corporates; 

Relationships 
built with 6 new 
corporates 
Target met. 
Recommend 
partnerships 
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Est connections 
with 4 new 
corporates; 
engaged 4 at 
Sydney meet-up   

exploring 
potential 
corp/media 
partnership for 
SmB 

partners; est 
connections with 
2 new 

good prospects 
for partnership 

manager re-sets 
targets 

 STRATEGIC PRIORITY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS 

Q1 TARGET Q2 TARGET Q3 TARGET Q4 TARGET FY TARGET 

7 LINKING AUSTRALIAN SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY INTERNATIONALLY 

7.1 Develop international 
partnerships and 
networks 

Existing partnerships 
deepened; new 
strategic 
partnerships formed 

Commence roll-
out of plan under 
AAAS MoU 
Roll-out 
commenced 

Explore 
opportunities for 
partnership in 
Canada 
Discussions 
commenced  

Secure MoU in 
China 
 
Target not met: 
seeking 
opportunities in 
Q1 19/20 

Secure MoU in 
New Zealand 
Target not met: 
NZ interested 
but longer term 
prospect  

2 new 
partnerships; 2 
deepening 
relationships 
No new 
partnerships, 
one deepening 
 

 STRATEGIC PRIORITY PERFORMANCE 
INDICATORS 

Q1 TARGET Q2 TARGET Q3 TARGET Q4 TARGET FY TARGET 

8 OPERATIONAL EXCELLENCE 
 

8.1 
 

Nurture a strong and 
growing membership  

Enhance member 
engagement 
 
More members 
attend STA 
networking events 

Meet 1-2-1 with 
25% of members 
10 meetings 
held: 14% of 
membership 
 

Meet 1-2-1 with 
25% of members 
3 meetings held: 
4% of 
membership 
 

Meet 1-2-1 with 
25% of members 
22 meetings held 
with 27% of 
members. 
 

Meet 1-2-1 with 
25% of members 
23 meetings 
held with 28% 
of members. 
 

Meet one-to-one 
with 100% of 
members 
58 meetings held 
with 63% 
(51/81) of 
members. 
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25% of members 
rep at a 
networking event 
 
25 members at 
Sydney Meet-up; 
35% of 
membership 

25% of members 
rep at a 
networking event 
18 members at 
Bris meet (24%)  
14 at Melb meet 
(19%)  
34 at AGM (47%) 

25% of members 
have  rep attend a 
networking event 
 
67% of members 
at Syd Meet-up or 
Forum 

25% of members 
have rep attend a 
networking 
event 
 
18.5% of 
members at Cbr 
Meet-up 
 

      
100% of members 
sent a 
representative to 
1 or more 
networking events 
85% (69/81) of 
members 1 or 
more 
representatives 
to networking 
events. 
 

       Implement 
membership growth 
strategy 

Secure 2 new 
members 
5 new Members 
secured 

Secure 4 new 
members 
4 new Members 
secured 

Secure 2 new 
members 
2 new members 
secured 

Secure 2 new 
members 
2 new members 
secured 
 

Secure 10 new 
members 
13 new members 
secured 

8.2 Meet commitments on 
time and to budget 

Meet all internal and 
external 
commitments on 
time and at or 
exceeding budget 

Commitments 
met on time. SmB 
likely to be over-
budget. 

Tracking behind 
budget with 
deficit likely to 
grow 

Commitments 
met. 
Tracking to 
budget.  

Commitments 
met. 
Tracking to 
budget. 

Commitments 
met; budget met 
or expectations 
exceeded 
Commitments 
met. 
Budget met. 

8.3 Be an employer of 
choice 

Ensure staff are 
appropriately skilled 

Finalise and 
implement equity, 

Set training goals 
for staff 
Done 

Conduct 
performance 
reviews 

Training as 
required; review 

Staff are 
productive, 
supported, 
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and supported to 
achieve their best. 

diversity and 
inclusion strategy 
Done 

Partial resourcing needs 
and capabilities 
Review 
complete and 
reflected in 
19/20 plan; 
engaged EAP  

appropriately 
skilled.  
Target met 
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STEM Ambassadors Round 1: Annual Report 
Ambassador and MP Profiles  

Ambassador Sector MP Electorate Party 

Charity Mundava Government Research Julie Owens Paramatta (NSW) Labor 

Peter Howley University Joel Fitzgibbon Hunter (NSW) Labor 

Simon Mutch University Tim Watts Gellibrand (Vic) Labor 

Candice Raeburn Government Peter Khalil Wills (Vic) Labor 

Kenneth Silburn Education Mike Freelander Macarthur (NSW) Labor 

Bryony Horton Government Luke Hartsyuker* Cowper (NSW) Nationals 

Sarah Chapman Education Cathy O’Toole**  Herbert (QLD) Labor 

Helen Blanchford University Karen Andrews McPherson (QLD) Liberal 

Robert Acres University Julian Hill Bruce (Vic) Labor 

*Luke Hartsyuker retired in the 2019 election and has been replaced by Pat Conaghan (Nationals) 
**Cathy O’Toole lost her seat in the 2019 election to Phillip Thompson (Liberal) 

The inaugural Ambassadors come from a wide range of sectors and states. We were unable to attract 
appropriate applicants and MP engagement in those states not represented above: a special effort has been 
taken to rectify this in round two. MPs have signed up for round two from South Australia, Tasmania and 
Western Australia. There has also been a concerted and successful effort to engage with Liberal, National 
and independent MPs for round two.  

Training outline and Professional development 
Four training sessions were provided to the Ambassadors, three of which were online, and one occurred in 
person in Canberra.  

Session 1 was an introduction to the program and covered effective engagement with parliamentarians and 
communicating science to parliamentarians. This was provided by the National Centre for the Public 
Awareness of Science (which provides similar training at Science meets Parliament).  

Session 2 focused on building networks with parliamentarians and the basics of media engagement. This 
session was provided by TalkForce Media. 

Session 3 covered policy monitoring and engagement, and how to write policy briefings and policy 
submissions. This session was provided by STA professional staff. Ambassadors were tasked with developing 
a briefing covering the ICCC Climate change report that had been released. These briefings were then 
presented to paired MPs.  

The Final training session, in Canberra, was presented by STA professional staff, with presentations from 
former Chief Scientist Ian Chubb and current Chief of Staff to the Chief Scientist, Sarah Brown. Training 
focused on social media and other communications, science advocacy, and the role of the chief scientist, and 
was followed by a trip to Parliament House for a Parliamentary Friends of Science event and Question Time, 
then the launch of the Labor party’s science policy agenda at the Academy of Science.  

Feedback from the Ambassadors showed overwhelming appreciation for this training day with the only 
negative comments being around the behaviour of parliamentarians during question time and the desire to 
have a face to face training session at the start of the program.  
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Professional Development 
Four out of nine ambassadors have experienced career progression since beginning as STEM Ambassadors.  

Based on the final survey results, all Ambassadors considered the training sessions useful with half referring 
it to extremely useful and half, very useful. The weekly policy briefings to the ambassadors was also reported 
as useful with 5 reporting them as extremely useful, 2 very useful and 1 somewhat useful. All ambassadors 
report a better (5 out of 8) and much better (3 of 8) understanding of national science policy as a result of 
the training and support provided by STA. 

The surveys also required Ambassadors to self-assess their own influence on and ability to communicate 
with decision makers. In the first survey 5 Ambassadors considered themselves confident or very confident 
in their ability to communicate with decision makers. This did not change in the second survey which was 
undertaken after the training sessions were completed. However, in the final survey, taken after all meetings 
with MPs had been completed, every respondent reported that they felt very or extremely confident in 
engaging with decision makers. We conclude that the more Ambassadors engage with Parliamentarians the 
more confident they become in managing such engagements.  

Ambassadors were asked in the final survey how they felt about their ability to influence national policy at 
the start of the program and the finish. Responses show marked improvement in the Ambassadors’ 
perceived influence on national policy.  

 

 

 
  

A great
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Meetings and events  
On average ambassadors attended five official meetings with their MPs. While some were lower than this 
(typically when the MP was a Minister or Shadow Minister) it was balanced by the other ambassadors within 
the program. There were some challenges in organising the initial meetings for some MPs due to either 
forgetting about the program or their workload in the case of the Minister and Shadow Minister. 
Ambassadors did report that it was difficult to organise meetings overall in the first half of the program but 
have found it easier after the May election.  

Along with meetings there have been opportunities for Ambassadors and their local members to attend 
events together. This has included sites visits, school events, and parliamentary working groups.  

Engagement with MPs 
During the training period Ambassadors were asked to prepare a brief on the ICCC report into the need to 
keep climate change to 1.5° C and present these briefs to their MPs. As hoped this activity not only 
encouraged Ambassadors to present ideas but also encouraged MPs to reach out to the Ambassadors for 
science policy advice. The STA team was able to provide advice to Ambassadors on several topics, including 
GMO crops, clean water initiatives, STEM businesses within the electorate, and international collaboration in 
research.  

Beyond the engagement with their MPs other opportunities for engagement also occurred during the 
program. Sarah Chapman participated in a project around STEM education that involved Penny Wong, Kim 
Carr and Tanya Plibersek. Kenneth Silburn, with the aid of STA, engaged with parliamentarians during a tour 
of parliament with South Korean STEM educators, and Peter Howley ran an event for student STEM projects 
at parliament also engaging with parliamentarians.  

The most significant case study for parliamentarian engagement was the relationship formed between Peter 
Khalil and Candice Raeburn in the electorate of Wills. From this partnership a quarterly Wills STEM group has 
been formed for all STEM professionals in the electorate with Peter, an opinion piece on gender equity in 
STEM jointly authored by Peter and Candice and most significantly a formal STEM Wills advisory group has 
been formed. This group has been tasked by Peter Khalil to review Labor’s science policy and has been 
provided with the STA Vision document as a basis for this. As a result of this unique partnership Candice has 
agreed to provide a training session for the next round of ambassadors.  

Challenges 

Workplace support 
One ambassador had to pull out early in the program as his workplace (a commonwealth department) 
initially approved his involvement and later changed its mind. 

Ambassadors moving 
Changes to electoral boundaries and Ambassadors moving have cause a couple of challenges. The electoral 
boundary that covers ANSTO moved prior to the election. This meant that technically Robert Acres and 
Julian Hill MP were no longer in the same electorate. Julian Hill MP’s electorate does still neighbour ANSTO 
so it was decided this relationship should continue. Helen Blanchard, the Ambassador for McPherson, has 
moved to Wollongong. Helen has agreed that it would be best to connect her to Sharon Bird (the MP in that 
electorate), and we will recruit a new Ambassador for McPherson with Karen Andrews. Finally, Candice 
Raeburn has informed us that she will not be continuing as the Ambassador for Wills. Candice has agreed to 
help encourage a replacement for Wills and provide handover support.  

Changes in MPs 
Two MPs have changed since the start of the program as a result of the election in the electorate of Herbert 
and Cowper. This was unexpected however both relevant Ambassadors are engaging with the new Members 
of Parliament. 
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Changes for next round 

A fifth workshop 
We propose to add a fifth workshop for the second round of ambassadors. Run by Candice Raeburn, a 
current Ambassador, and focus on engaging with other STEM professionals in your electorate. Given the 
ongoing nature of the program previous Ambassadors will be invited to this workshop.  

Face-to-face meetings 
One of the most consistent pieces of feedback from the ambassadors is to, if possible, have more face-to-
face meetings. This obviously attracts a cost: if there is no capacity to add extra face-to-face, we recommend 
holding the single face-to-face meeting at the start of the program. This would provide a more cohesive feel 
among the ambassadors and encourage further collaboration.  

Regular general discussions 
The current ambassadors have suggested that regular catch ups with each other and the STA staff would be 
useful to help develop a cohort feel. Monthly informal meetings are now occurring and for round 2 regular 
monthly meetings will be scheduled as well as the training sessions for general discussion among the 
Ambassadors.  

Engagement with previous ambassadors  
The current ambassadors have indicated they would like to work with incoming ambassadors in either a 
regular discussion forum or to work as mentors for new ambassadors. This is still in discussion but as a 
minimum during the monthly catchup meetings all ambassadors will be provided with an opportunity to 
engage.   
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Treasurer’s Report: 
Audited Financial Statements Financial Year 2018/19  
 
The Association operated with a deficit of $231,226 for the financial year ending 30 June 2019. (In the 
previous year a surplus of $9.8k was recorded). This year’s deficit is the result of the unavoidable deferral of 
Science meets Parliament to the following financial year, due to the Federal Election. Science meets 
Parliament is Science & Technology Australia’s major annual earning opportunity and its one-off deferral led 
to a loss in 2018-19. 
 
At 30 June 2019, total assets were $1,910k and total liabilities (including future grants) were $1,416k. This 
results in net assets of $493k, a decrease on the previous year. 
Total income and revenue  $1,113k including 
Government grants:   $417k (Superstars of STEM 2.0 2019-2022) 
Member subscriptions:   $267k 
Registrations:    $166k 
Sponsorships:    $217k 
Workshops:    $23k 
Interest and other income:  $22k 
 
Total expenses for the year  $1,344k including  
Staffing costs    $790k  
Event expenses    $261k 
Executive expenses   $84k  
Office and admin expenses  $95k  
Finance costs    $60k 
Multimedia expenses   $48k 
Depreciation costs   $6k  
 
Total cash/bank accounts at the beginning of the 2018/19 financial year:  $2,502k 
Total cash and cash equivalents at the end of the 2018/19 financial year: $1,805k 
 
Trade and receivables   $43k (agreement to be paid by Jan 2020) 
Other assets (rental bond)  $53k 
Office equipment   $8k (taking into account depreciation) 
Payables  $58k (trade creditors, employee benefits, long service leave, GST payable to ATO) 
Provisions   $43k (current and future leave provisions for staff) 
Notes:  The Association is exempt from income tax.  
No related party transactions were identified to be irregular.  
 
Thanks very much to Penny Thomson and Kylie Walker for their careful work in preparing the 2018-2019 
accounts for audit and for working with the auditors Vincents on the financial statements.  
Vincents note that this is the first year they have audited the accounts. They received ethical clearance from 
Synergy who audited the accounts last year, and stated that the change in auditor is not untoward. 
 

ACTION: To reappoint Vincent’s as STA’s auditors for the 2019/2020 financial year.  
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The directors present their report on Federation of Australian Scientific and Technological Societies Incorporated Trading as 
Science Technology Australia for the financial year ended 30 June 2019. 

General information  

Directors   

The names of each person who held a position as a member of the Board (Cluster Representatives) or Executive during the 
year ended 30 June 2019 or at the date of this statement were: 

CONTINUING DIRECTORS 
Names Position Appointed/Resigned 
Ms Kylie Walker CEO  
Ms Kylie Ahern General Cluster Representative   
Professor Emma Johnston President   

Professor Rebecca Ritchie Medical and Cognitive Sciences Cluster 
Representative   

Dr Jeremy C Brownlie President-elect   
Dr Darren Saunders Secretary   
Dr Zoe Doubleday ECR Representative   
Dr Katherine Dafforn Aquatic Sciences Cluster Representative   
Professor Judith Dawes Treasurer   
 

DIRECTORS RESIGNED  
Dr Duanne White Geographical Sciences Cluster Representative Resigned 25 October 2018  
Professor Geoff Prince Mathematical Sciences Cluster Representative Resigned 25 October 2018  
Professor Andrew Peele Physical Cluster Representative Resigned 25 October 2018  

Associate Professor Ulrike Mathesius 
Plants and Ecological Sciences Cluster 
Representative Resigned 25 October 2018  

Peter Elford Technological Sciences Cluster Representative Resigned 25 October 2018  
Professor Brian Yates General Cluster Representative Resigned 25 October 2018  
Ms Tanya Ha Ordinary Member Representative Resigned 22 November 2018  
Dr Cathy Foley Policy Chair Resigned 10 September 2018  
Dr Alan Duffy ECR Representative Resigned 22 November 2018  
 
DIRECTORS APPOINTED   
Professor Sharath Sriram Chair of Policy Committee Appointed 20 September 2018 
Professor Eileen McLaughlin Biological Sciences Cluster Representative Appointed 25 October 2018 

Dr Damien Belobrajdic Agricultural and Food Sciences Cluster 
Representative Appointed 25 October 2018 

Dr Thomas Cresswell Chemical Sciences Cluster Representative Appointed 25 October 2018 

Ms Marina Costelloe Geographical and Geological Sciences Cluster 
Representative Appointed 25 October 2018 

Professor Adrian Barnett Mathematical Sciences Cluster Representative Appointed 25 October 2018 
Associate Professor Cathryn Trott Physical Sciences Cluster Representative Appointed 25 October 2018 
Professor Rachel Burton Plant and Ecological Sciences Cluster Representative Appointed 25 October 2018 
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Dr Branwen Morgan Technological Sciences Cluster Representative Appointed 25 October 2018 
Ms Jasmine Chambers General Sciences Cluster Representative Appointed 25 October 2018 
   
Dr Susan Barrell Vice President Appointed 22 November 2018 
Dr Sumeet Walia ECR Representative Appointed 22 November 2018 

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this report unless otherwise stated. 

Principal activities   

The principal activities of during the financial year were to encourage scientific dialogue between industry, Government and 
the Science and Technology community; to promote public understanding of science; and to foster close relations between 
the member societies. 

Significant changes   

No significant change in the nature of these activities occurred during the year. 

Operating result   

The operating result of the Association for the financial year was a deficit of $ $231,226 (2018: surplus of $ 9,863). This 
year’s deficit is the result of the unavoidable one-off deferral of Science meets Parliament to the following financial year, due 
to the Federal Election. Science meets Parliament is Science & Technology Australia’s major annual earning opportunity. 
 
 
 
 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board: 

 

        

Board member       Board member:   

Professor Emma Johnston     Dr Jeremy Brownlie 

President, Science & Technology Australia                                          President-Elect, Science & Technology Australia 

 

Dated this 24th day of October 2019 



 
 
 

                            3 

 

 

 

 

 

Auditors Independence Declaration under Section 60-40 of the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 
to the Responsible Persons of Federation of Australian 
Scientific and Technological Societies Incorporated Trading as 
Science & Technology Australia 

 
 

I declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the 12 months ended 30 June 2019 there 
have been: 

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in section 60-40 of the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to the audit; and 

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

 

VINCENTS 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Josie-Marie Lopez 
Partner 
 
24 October 2019 
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 Note 
2019 

$ 
2018 

$ 
Service income  5  673,995   640,769  
Grant income  5  417,203   511,495  
Other income 6  21,710   14,117  

Total revenue and Other income 19  1,112,908   1,166,381  
    
Staffing costs   (790,172)   (641,696)  
Event expenses   (261,476)   (237,457)  
Executive expenses   (83,528)   (55,728)  
Finance costs   (59,913)   (48,772)  
Multimedia expenses   (48,381)   (99,282)  
Depreciation   (5,623)   (1,651)  
Office administration and other expenses   (95,041)   (71,932)  

Total Expenses 19  (1,344,134)   (1,156,518)  

(Deficit)/ Surplus for the year   (231,226)   9,863  

Other comprehensive income for the year             -              -  

Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year   (231,226)   9,863  
 
. 
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 Note 
2019 

$ 
2018 

$ 

ASSETS    

CURRENT ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents 7  1,805,447   2,501,801  
Trade and other receivables 8  43,203   4,110  
Other financial assets 10  52,594   25,832  
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS   1,901,244   2,531,743  
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    

Property, plant and equipment 9  8,404   1,755  
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS   8,404   1,755  
TOTAL ASSETS   1,909,648   2,533,498  

LIABILITIES    

CURRENT LIABILITIES    

Trade and other payables 11  58,342   193,536  
Provisions 12  34,351   32,706  
Unearned revenue 13  665,512   411,148  
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES   758,205   637,390  
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    

Unearned revenue 13 650,000 1,169,991 
Provisions 12  8,246   1,694  
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES   658,246   1,171,685  
TOTAL LIABILITIES   1,416,451   1,809,075  
NET ASSETS   493,197   724,423  

 

EQUITY    

Retained earnings   493,197   724,423  

    
TOTAL EQUITY   493,197   724,423  

The Association has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 9, the comparative information has been 
prepared under AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. 
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2019    

  

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 
Total 

$ 
Balance at 1 July 2018   724,423   724,423  
Surplus/(deficit) attributable to the entity   (231,226)   (231,226)  

Balance at 30 June 2019   493,197   493,197  
 
2018    

  

Retained 
Earnings 

$ 
Total 

$ 
Balance at 1 July 2017   714,560   714,560  
Surplus/(deficit) attributable to the entity   9,863   9,863  

Balance at 30 June 2018   724,423   724,423  
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 Note 
2019 

$ 
2018 

$ 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:    

Receipts from government and others  867,656  2,608,384  
Interest received  19,929  14,131  
Payments to suppliers and employees  (1,570,488)  (1,226,581)  

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities  (682,903)  1,395,934  
 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:    

Payment for properties, plant and equipment  (13,451)  -  

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities  (13,451)  -  
 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:    

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities   -   -  
 
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held  (696,354)  1,395,934  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year  2,501,801  1,105,867  

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year 7 1,805,447  2,501,801  
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1 Basis of Preparation  

The financial report covers Federation of Australian Scientific and Technological Societies Incorporated Trading as 
Science Technology Australia as an individual entity. Federation of Australian Scientific and Technological Societies 
Incorporated Trading as Science Technology Australia is a not-for-profit Association, registered and domiciled in 
Australia.  

The functional and presentation currency of Federation of Australian Scientific and Technological Societies 
Incorporated Trading as Science Technology Australia is Australian dollars. 

The financial report was authorised for issue by those charged with governance on 24th October 2019. 

The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance with the 
Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements and the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits 
Commission Act 2012 and the Associations Incorporation Act 1991 of the Australian Capital Territory (ACT).  

The financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are based on historical costs, modified, where 
applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The 
amounts presented in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar. 

Significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are presented below and are 
consistent with prior reporting periods unless otherwise stated. 

2 Change in Accounting Policy  

 Financial Instruments - Adoption of AASB 9  

The Association has adopted AASB 9 Financial Instruments for the first time in the current year with a date of initial 
adoption of 1 July 2018. 

The key changes to the Association's accounting policy and the impact on these financial statements from applying 
AASB 9 are described below. 

Changes in accounting policies resulting from the adoption of AASB 9 have been applied retrospectively except the 
Association has not restated any amounts relating to classification and measurement requirements including 
impairment which have been applied from 1 July 2018. 

 Classification of financial assets   

The financial assets of the Association have been reclassified into one of the following categories on adoption of AASB 
9 based on primarily the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow 
characteristics: 

• Measured at amortised cost 

 Transition adjustments   

There was no impacts to retained earnings on adoption of AASB 9 at 1 July 2018. 
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 Classification of financial assets and financial liabilities   

The table below illustrates the classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities under AASB 9 and 
AASB 139 at the date of initial application. 

  

Classification 
under AASB 

139 
 

Classification 
under AASB 9 

 

Carrying 
amount 
under 

AASB 139 
$ 

Reclassific-
ation 

$ 

Re-measure
me-nts 

$ 

Carrying 
amount 

under AASB 
9 
$ 

Financial assets 
 

      

Trade receivables 

 Loans and 
receivables
  Amortised cost   4,110   -   -   4,110  

Cash and cash equivalents 

 Loans and 
receivables
  Amortised cost   1,839,580   -   -   1,839,580  

Term deposits (i) 

 Held to 
maturity
  Amortised cost   662,221   -   -   662,221  

Total financial assets     2,505,911   -   -   2,505,911  

Financial liabilities 
 

      

Trade payables  Amortized cost  Amortized cost   19,195   -   -   19,195  
Unearned revenue  Amortized cost  Amortized cost   1,581,139   -   -   1,581,139  

Total financial liabilities      1,600,334   -   -   1,600,334  

Notes to the table: 

(i) Reclassification from Held to Maturity to Amortised Cost 

Term deposits that would previously have been classified as held to maturity are now classified at amortised cost. The 
Association intends to hold the assets to maturity to collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows consist solely of 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.  There was no difference between the previous 
carrying amount and the revised carrying amount of these assets. 

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies  

(a) Income Tax  

The financial report has been prepared on the basis that the Association is exempt from income tax under 
section 50-55 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997. 

(b) Leases  

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all of the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are 
charged as expenses on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term. Lease incentives under operating 
leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease term. 

Finance leases are capitalised, recording an asset and a liability equal to the present value of the minimum 
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lease payments, including any guaranteed residual values. Leased assets are amortised on a reducing balance 
basis over their estimated useful lives, where it is likely that the Association will obtain ownership of the asset, or 
over the term of the lease. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and the 
lease interest expense for the period. 

(c) Revenue and other income  

 Government funding   

Grant revenue is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when the entity 
obtains control of the grant and it is probable that the economic benefits gained from the grant will flow to the 
entity and the amount of the grant can be measured reliably. 

If conditions are attached to the grant which must be satisfied before it is eligible to receive the contribution, the 
recognition of the grant as revenue will be deferred until those conditions are satisfied. 

When grant revenue is received whereby the entity incurs an obligation to deliver economic value directly back 
to the contributor, this is considered a reciprocal transaction and the grant revenue is recognised in the 
statement of financial position as a liability until the service has been delivered to the contributor, otherwise the 
grant is recognised as income on receipt. 

Membership fees 

Revenue is recognised as income upon receipt. 

Interest revenue 

Revenue is recognised when there is a right to receive the interest payment. 

Other income (non-grant related) 

All other sources of income are brought to account as income when the related goods or services have been 
provided and the income earned. 

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax. 

(d) Goods and services tax (GST)  

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except 
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). 

Receivables and payable are stated inclusive of GST. 

Cash flows in the statement of cash flows are included on a gross basis and the GST component of cash flows 
arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is 
classified as operating cash flows. 
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(e) Property, plant and equipment  

Plant and equipment are carried at cost, less where applicable accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. 
The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by management to ensure it is not in excess of 
the recoverable amount from these assets. 

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end. 

 Depreciation   

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets are depreciated on a reducing balance basis over their useful lives to 
the Association commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. 

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are shown below: 

 
Fixed asset class Depreciation rate 
Office Equipment  10 - 100%  

At the end of each annual reporting period, the depreciation method, useful life and residual value of each asset 
is reviewed. Any revisions are accounted for prospectively as a change in estimate. 

(f) Financial instruments  

 Financial assets   

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, 
depending on the classification of the financial assets. 

Classification  

On initial recognition, the Association classifies its financial assets into the following categories, those measured 
at: 

• amortised cost 

• fair value through profit or loss - FVTPL 

• fair value through other comprehensive income - equity instrument (FVOCI - equity) 

• fair value through other comprehensive income - debt investments (FVOCI - debt) 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Association changes its 
business model for managing financial assets. 
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Amortised cost 

Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where: 

• the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and 

• the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

The Association's financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables and cash 
and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate 
method less provision for impairment. 

Interest income, foreign exchange gains or losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.  Gain or loss 
on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss. 

 

Impairment of financial assets  

Impairment of financial assets is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis for the following assets: 

• financial assets measured at amortised cost 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial assets has increased significant since initial recognition 
and when estimating ECL, the Association considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant 
and available without undue cost or effort.  This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and 
analysis based on the Association's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward 
looking information. 

The Association uses the presumption that a financial asset is in default when: 

• the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Association in full, without recourse to the 
Association to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 

• the financial assets is more than 90 days past due. 
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Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the Association 
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows expected to be received.  This is applied using a probability 
weighted approach. 

Trade receivables 

Impairment of trade receivables have been determined using the simplified approach in AASB 9 which uses an 
estimation of lifetime expected credit losses.  The Association has determined the probability of non-payment of 
the receivable and multiplied this by the amount of the expected loss arising from default. 

The amount of the impairment is recorded in a separate allowance account with the loss being recognised in 
finance expense.  Once the receivable is determined to be uncollectable then the gross carrying amount is 
written off against the associated allowance. 

Where the Association renegotiates the terms of trade receivables due from certain customers, the new 
expected cash flowa are discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the 
carrying value is recognised in profit or loss. 

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost 

Impairment of other financial assets measured at amortised cost are determined using the expected credit loss 
model in AASB 9.  On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 
months is recognised.  Where the asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime 
losses are estimated and recognised. 

 Financial liabilities   

The Association measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently 
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 

The financial liabilities of the Association comprise trade payables and unearned revenue. 

(g) Cash and cash equivalents  

Cash and cash equivalents comprises cash on hand and deposits held at call which are readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

(h) Provisions  

Provisions are recognised when the Association has a legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, 
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.  

Provisions recognised represent the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation at the end of 
the reporting period. 
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(i) Employee benefits  

Short-term employee benefits 

Provision is made for the Association’s obligation for short-term employee benefits. Short-term employee benefits 
are benefits (other than termination benefits) that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end 
of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related service, including wages, salaries and 
annual leave. Short-term employee benefits are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid 
when the obligation is settled. The Association’s obligations for short-term employee benefits such as wages, 
salaries and sick leave are recognised as a part of current trade and other payables in the statement of financial 
position. 

 
Other long-term employee benefits 
The Association classifies employees’ long service leave entitlements as other long-term employee benefits as 
they are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period in which 
the employees render the related service. Provision is made for the Association’s obligation for other long-term 
employee benefits, which are measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made to 
employees. Expected future payments incorporate anticipated future wage and salary levels, durations of service 
and employee departures, and are discounted at rates determined by reference to market yields at the end of the 
reporting period on government bonds that have maturity dates that approximate the terms of the obligations. 
Upon the remeasurement of obligations for other long-term employee benefits, the net change in the obligations 
is recognised in profit or loss classified under employee benefits expense. 
 
The Association’s obligations for long-term employee benefits are presented as non-current liabilities in its 
statement of financial position, except where the Association does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period, in which case the obligations are presented 
as current liabilities. 
 
Defined contribution superannuation benefits 
 
All employees of the Association receive defined contribution superannuation entitlements, for which the 
Association pays the fixed superannuation  guarantee contribution (currently 9.5% of the employee’s average 
ordinary salary) to  the employee’s superannuation fund of choice. All contributions in respect of employee’s 
defined contributions entitlements are recognised as an expense when they become payable. The Association’s 
obligation with respect to employees’ defined contribution entitlements is limited to its obligation for any unpaid 
superannuation guarantee contributions at the end of the reporting period. All obligations for unpaid 
superannuation guarantee contributions are measured at the (undiscounted) amounts expected to be paid when 
the obligation is settled and are presented as current liabilities in the Association’s statement of financial position. 
 

(j) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards  

The Association has adopted all standards which became effective for the first time for the year ended 30 June 
2019, the adoption of these standards has not caused any material adjustments to the reported financial position, 
performance or cash flow of the Association. 

     4    Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments  

Those charged with governance make estimates and judgements during the preparation of these financial 
statements regarding assumptions about current and future events affecting transactions and balances. 
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These estimates and judgements are based on the best information available at the time of preparing the financial 
statements, however as additional information is known then the actual results may differ from the estimates. 

The significant estimates and judgements made have been described below. 

 Key estimates - impairment of property, plant and equipment   

At each reporting date, the Association reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine 
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable 
amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the 
asset's carrying value. As a not-for-profit entity, value in use, according to AASB 136 Impairment of Assets, is 
depreciated replacement cost. Any excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an impairment loss. 

 Key estimates - provisions   

As described in the accounting policies, provisions are measured at management’s best estimate of the expenditure 
required to settle the obligation at the end of the reporting period. These estimates are made taking into account a 
range of possible outcomes and will vary as further information is obtained. 

 Key estimates - receivables   

The receivables at reporting date have been reviewed to determine whether there is any objective evidence that any of 
the receivables are impaired. An impairment provision is included for any receivable where the entire balance is not 
considered collectible. The impairment provision is based on the best information at the reporting date. 
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5 Revenue and Other Income  

 Revenue from continuing operations   

  

2019 
$ 

2018 
$ 

Grants     

    
- Department of Industry grants   417,203   511,495  

   417,203   511,495  

Service revenue    

- Member subscriptions   267,161   237,262  
- Registrations   166,277   163,313  
- Sponsorships   217,298   225,194  
- Workshops   23,259   15,000  

   673,995   640,769  

Total Revenue from operations   1,091,198   1,152,264  

 

 

6   Other income                                                                             
    

        2019       2018 
        $        $ 
    
    
- Interest income   17,930   14,103  
- Miscellaneous income   3,780   14  

Total Other income   21,710   14,117  

 



Federation of Australian Scientific and Technological Societies Incorporated Trading as 
Science & Technology Australia 
ABN 71 626 822 845 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019 
 

17 

7 Cash and Cash Equivalents  

  

2019 
$ 

2018 
$ 

Cash at bank and in hand   1,129,581   1,839,580  
Short-term deposits   675,866   662,221  

   1,805,447   2,501,801  

8 Trade and Other Receivables  

  

2019 
$ 

2018 
$ 

CURRENT  
  

Trade receivables   43,203   4,110  

    

Total current trade and other receivables   43,203   4,110  

The carrying value of trade receivables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term 
nature of the balances. 

 

9 Property, plant and equipment  

 

2019 
$ 

2018 
$ 

Office equipment   

Office equipment at cost  17,634   21,828  
Accumulated depreciation  (9,230)   (20,073)  

Total   8,404   1,755  
Total plant and equipment  8,404   1,755  
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(a) Movements in Carrying Amounts   

Movement in the carrying amounts for each class of property, plant and equipment between the beginning and 
the end of the current financial year: 

 

2019 
$ 

 
2018 

$ 
Office equipment   
Opening balance 1,755  3,405  
Additions 13,451             -  
Disposals/discard  (1,179)             -  
Depreciation (5,623)  (1,650)  
   

Balance at the end of the year  8,404   1,755  

 

10 Other Financial Assets  

 

2019 
$ 

2018 
$ 

CURRENT   

Prepayments  37,310   21,673  
Accrued interest  4,416   4,159  
Rental bond  10,868               -  

  52,594   25,832  

11 Trade and Other Payables  
    

  

2019 
$ 

2018 
$ 

Trade creditors and accruals    32,375   19,195  
Employee benefits payable   1,672   1,654  
GST payable to ATO   24,295   172,687  

   58,342   193,536  

Trade and other payables are unsecured, non-interest bearing and are normally settled within 30 days.  The carrying 
value of trade and other payables is considered a reasonable approximation of fair value due to the short-term nature of 
the balances. 

Employee benefits payable include accrued wages and superannuation payable. 



Federation of Australian Scientific and Technological Societies Incorporated Trading as 
Science &Technology Australia 
ABN 71 626 822 845 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the Year Ended 30 June 2019 
 

19 
 

12 Provisions  

 

2019 
$ 

2018 
$ 

CURRENT   

Annual leave  34,351   32,706  

  34,351   32,706  

   

NON-CURRENT   

Long service leave  8,246   1,694  

  8,246   1,694  

 

13 Unearned revenue  

  

2019 
$ 

2018 
$ 

CURRENT    

Government grants   328,645   402,998  
Revenue received in advance   336,867   8,150  

   665,512   411,148  

NON-CURRENT   

Government grants  650,000   975,000  
Revenue received in advance         - 194,991 

  650,000   1,169,991  

 

14  Key Management Personnel Remuneration 

(a)   Details of key managerial personnel 
  

 

   
Ms Kylie Walker Associate Professor Coral Warr Ms Kylie Ahern 

Dr Dianne Jolley 
Dr Zoe Doubleday
  

Professor Judith Dawes 

Dr Duanne White 
Dr Cathy Foley
  

Professor Sharath Sriram 

Professor Geoff Prince 
Dr. Katherine Dafforn
  

Professor Eileen McLaughlin 

Professor Andrew Peele 
Dr Alan Duffy
  

Dr Damien Belobrajdic 

Associate Professor Ulrike Mathesius Professor Emma Johnston Dr Thomas Cresswell 
Peter Elford Professor Rebecca Ritchie Ms Marina Costelloe 
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Professor Brian Yates 
Dr Jeremy C Brownlie
  

Professor Adrian Barnett 

Ms Tanya Ha 
Dr Darren Saunders
  

Associate Professor Cathryn Trott 

Professor Rachel Burton Dr Branwen Morgan Ms Jasmine Chambers 
     Dr Susan Barrell Dr Sumeet Walia  

 

    Remuneration paid to the key management personnel during the year are as follows: 

 

 

2019 
$ 

2018 
$ 

Short-term employee benefits 200,719 198,146 
Post employment benefits 22,228 21,437 
           222,947   219,583  

15  Contingencies  

In the opinion of those charged with governance, the Association did not have any contingencies at 30 June 2019 (30 
June 2018:None). 

16 Related Parties  

 Related party transactions   

(a) Transactions with related parties   

Related parties comprise the key managerial personnel. In addition to the Key managerial personnel 
remuneration as disclosed in Note 14, other transactions between related parties usually include routine 
membership fees and reimbursement of expenses which are on normal commercial terms and conditions no 
more favourable than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated and hence do not require separate 
disclosure.  

The following additional transactions occurred with related parties: 
   

Key Management Personnel Organisation (Description of transactions)  Amount ($) 

Ms Kylie Ahern 

STEM matters                        
(Financial partnership- akin to sponsorship)
    16,500  
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17 Events after the end of the Reporting Period  

The financial report was authorised for issue on 24 October 2019 by those charged with governance. 

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may 
significantly affect the operations of the Association, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the 
Association in future financial years. 

18 Statutory Information  
 
The registered office and principal place of business of the association is: 
Unit 3 
8 Phipps Close 
Deakin 

19 Comparative Information  

The classification of comparative figures has been changed where the change improves the understandability of the 
financial information. 
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The responsible persons declare that in the responsible persons' opinion: 

• there are reasonable grounds to believe that the registered entity is able to pay all of its debts, as and when they 
become due and payable; and 

• the financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission 
Act 2012. 

Signed in accordance with subsection 60.15(2) of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profit Commission Regulation 2013. 

 

         
 
 
 
Responsible person       Responsible person 
 
 
Professor Emma Johnston      Dr Jeremy Brownlie 
 
President, Science & Technology Australia President-Elect, Science & Technology    

Australia 
 
 
 
Dated: 24 October 2019 
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Independent Audit Report to the members of the Federation of Australian Scientific and 
Technological Societies Incorporated Trading as Science & Technology Australia 

 
Report on the Audit of the Financial Report 
We have audited the financial report of the Federation of Australian Scientific and Technological 
Societies Incorporated trading as Science & Technology Australia (the registered entity), which 
comprises the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of financial 
position as at 30 June 2019, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting 
policies, and the responsible entities’ declaration. 
 
In our opinion, because of the existence of the limitation on our assurance over the comparative figures, 
and the effect of such adjustments, if any, as might have been determined necessary had the limitation 
not existed, we are unable and do not express an opinion as to whether the comparatives for 2018 and 
the results of Science & Technology Australia for the year ended 2018 are presented fairly in 
accordance with applicable Accounting Standards and the requirements of the Australian Charities and 

Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. 

In our opinion the financial report of Science & Technology Australia has been prepared in accordance 
with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012, including: 
 
(i) Giving a true and fair view of the registered entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2019 and of its 

financial performance for the year ended; and 
 

(ii) Complying with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013. 

 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Report section of our report. We are independent of the registered entity in accordance with the auditor 
independence requirements of Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission 
Act 2012 and the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards 
Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit 
of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other responsibilities in accordance with 
the Code.  
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our opinion. 
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Emphasis of Matter – Basis of Accounting 
 
We draw attention to Note 1 to the financial report, which describes the bases of accounting.  The 
financial report has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the registered entity’s financial reporting 
responsibilities under the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.  As a result, 
the financial report may not be suitable for another purpose.  Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this matter.  
 
Responsibilities of Responsible Entities for the Financial Report 
 
The responsible entities of the registered entity are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation 
of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and Division 60 of the 
Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that gives a true 
and fair view that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.  
 
In preparing the financial report, management is responsible for assessing the registered entity’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the registered 
entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes 
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit 
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually 
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of the financial report. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional 
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud 

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, 
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override 
of internal control. 
 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the registered entity’s internal control.  
 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management. 
 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the registered entity’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
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attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions 
may cause the registered entity to cease to continue as a going concern. 
 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 

We communicate with responsible entities regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit. 
 
 
VINCENTS 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

Josie-Marie Lopez 
Partner 

 
Canberra, 24 October 2019 



 
  

 

 
Ms Josie-Marie Lopez 

Director 
Vincents  

Level 2, 14 Moore St 
Canberra ACT 2601 

 
 

24 October 2019 
 

 
Dear Josie-Marie, 

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial report of 
Science & Technology Australia for the year ended 30 June 2019, for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion as to whether the financial report is presented fairly, in all material respects, in 
accordance with the relevant Australian Accounting Standards and the Australian Charities and 
Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012. 

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such enquiries as we 
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves, the following 
representations made to you during your audit: 

Financial report 
• We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement dated 

11 April 2019, for the preparation of the financial report in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards as per note 1; in particular the financial report is fairly presented in 
accordance therewith. 

• We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial report 
may be materially misstated as a result of fraud. 

• Significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those 
measured at fair value, are reasonable. 

• We have disclosed to you the identity of the Organisation’s related parties and all the related 
party relationships and transactions of which we are aware. 

• Any related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for and 
disclosed in accordance with the requirements of Australian accounting standards. 

• All events subsequent to the date of the financial report and for which Australian Accounting 
Standards require adjustment or disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.  

Information provided 

• We have provided you with: 

a) access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation of the 
financial report such as records, documentation and other matters. 

b) all requested information, explanations and assistance for the purposes of the audit.  

c) unrestricted access to persons within the Organisation from whom you determined it 
necessary to obtain audit evidence. 

• All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the 
financial report. 

• We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims whose effects 
should be considered when preparing the financial report; and accounted for and disclosed in 
accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework.  



 
General 
• We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying values or classification 

of assets and liabilities. 

• The Organisation has satisfactory title to all assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances 
on such assets nor have any assets been pledged as collateral that have not been disclosed in 
the financial report.  

• There have been no known instances of non-compliance or suspected non-compliance with 
laws and regulations or contractual agreements whose effects should be considered in 
preparing the financial report. 

Fraud  
• We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of 

internal control to prevent and detect fraud and confirm we have disclosed to you: 

a) the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial report may be materially 
misstated as a result of fraud 

b) all information in relation to fraud or suspected fraud that we are aware of and that affects 
the entity and involves: 

i. management  

ii. employees who have significant roles in internal controls or 

iii. others where the fraud could have a material effect in the financial report and 

c) all information in relation to allegations of fraud, or suspected fraud, affecting the entity’s 
financial report communicated to us by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators 
or others. 

Commitments 
• There were no material commitments for goods or services at year end, other than those 

disclosed in the financial report. 

Impairment of assets  
• We have considered the requirements of AASB 136 Impairment of assets when assessing the 

carrying values of assets and in ensuring that no assets within the scope of AASB 136 are 
stated in excess of their recoverable amount. 

Liabilities  
• There are no financial guarantee contracts in place to third parties which could be called 

upon in the event of a default, other than those disclosed in the financial report.  

Property, plant and equipment 
• Rates of depreciation, applied to reduce book values of individual assets to their estimated 

residual values, reflect the probable useful lives of those assets to the Organisation.  

• Allowances for depreciation have been adjusted for all significant items of property, plant and 
equipment that have been abandoned or are otherwise unusable. 

• The Organisation has no ‘make good’ obligations in respect of its property, plant and 
equipment for which it would be required to make a restorative provision under AASB 137 
Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets which have not been included in the 
financial report. 

Taxation 
• Adequate amounts have been accrued for all local taxes on income including amounts 

applicable to prior years not finally settled and paid.  

  



 
Electronic presentation of financial report 
• With respect to presentation of the financial report on our website, we acknowledge that: 

a) we are responsible for the electronic presentation of the financial report 

b) we will ensure that the electronic version of the audited financial report and the auditor’s 
report on the website will be identical to the final signed hard copy version 

c) we will clearly differentiate between audited and unaudited information in the 
construction of the entity’s website as we understand the risk of potential 
misrepresentation 

d) we have assessed the controls over the security and integrity of the data on the website 
and confirmed that adequate procedures are in place to ensure the integrity of the 
information presented and 

e) we will not present the auditor’s report on the full financial report with extracts only of 
the full financial report. 

 

Yours sincerely, 

 
Professor Emma Johnston 

President, Science & Technology Australia 

 

24 October 2019 

 



 
Appendix 1: Uncorrected misstatements  
 
None noted  

 



CPI - 1.3% NEW NEW NEW NEW NEW

GRANT: None None None None None None None None None SSTARS
Account Notes Total

Event: General Member 
Services

Ambassadors 
& Alumni

Industry 
Roundtable

Equity, 
Diversity & 
Inclusion

Alumni 
Masterclass

Communicator 
Workshops

CEO & Pres 
Forum SmP 2019 SmP 2020 SSTARS 2.0

Income 2018-19 BUDGET  2018-19 ACTUALS 
to 30 April 2019 2019-20 BUDGET

Registrations (40608) 278,500.00 176,961 300,000.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 70,000.00 130,000.00 - 
Sponsorship (40609) 500,000.00 480,263 702,000.00 25,000.00 150,000.00 30,000.00 25,000.00 12,000.00 400,000.00 60,000.00 
DME Grant (40120) - ARCHIVE - 
Interest Received NAB (40975) 14,000.00 12,861 Term deposits and savings a/c 16,000.00 16,000.00 
Other Income [40884] (40884) - 3,962 - 
SmB Grant (40130) - ARCHIVE - 
SSTARS Grant 325,000.00 1/4 allocated per year 325,000.00 325,000.00 
Membership Fees 294,000.00 266,902 UPDATE: Subscriptions Current Year 292,000.00 292,000.00 
Unspent Grant Carried Forward (40101) 116,000.00 402,998 subject to audit - 
Unspent Revenue Carried Forward NEW - not grant money but similar treatment 313,000.00 (418,460.00) 37,500.00 
WISE Grant (40140) 17,850.00 17,850 ARCHIVE - 
Workshops (40610) 30,000.00 11,818 based on two workshops 30,000.00 30,000.00 
Total Income $1,575,350.00 1,373,615 $1,665,000.00 $308,000.00 $25,000.00 $50,000.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $80,000.00 $30,000.00 $25,000.00 $395,000.00 $111,540.00 $422,500.00

Gross Profit $1,575,350.00 1,373,615 $1,665,000.00 $308,000.00 $25,000.00 $50,000.00 $150,000.00 $0.00 $80,000.00 $30,000.00 $25,000.00 $395,000.00 $111,540.00 $422,500.00

Less Operating Expenses
Accountancy and Audit Fees (61510) 16,700.00 12,900 2019 Fee $5500 + CPI 10,600.00 5,600.00 1,500.00 3,500.00 
Advertising and Promotion (64515) 61,000.00 33,676 Includes Meltwater accrual 36,200.00 15,000.00 1,000.00 5,000.00 200.00 15,000.00 
Audio Visual (62065) 49,950.00 13,495 50,250.00 4,900.00 150.00 35,200.00 10,000.00 
Bad Debts (61520) - - 
Bank Fees (61545) 1,300.00 1,060 No change - Account & CC Fees + Int'l Trans Fees 1,300.00 1,300.00 
Bank Revaluations (497) - - 
Board Expenses (62060) 43,000.00 30,108 Includes all board event expenses; gifts to outgoing staff

members. Professional development split out. 58,000.00 40,000.00      5,000.00        13,000.00   
Bookkeeping fees (64520) 36,000.00 29,182 36,500.00 27,500.00 1,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 
Catering (62068) 126,000.00 23,715 133,700.00 4,000.00 25,100.00 1,000.00 4,600.00 68,000.00 3,000.00 28,000.00 
CEO Expenses (63803) 30,000.00 19,774 Includes International Travel (NZ & Indonesia) 15,050.00 15,000.00 50.00 - 
Computing & Internet services (64580) 28,300.00 19,342 per Richard IT budget inc 2 new staff licencing and laptops + 

video conferencing 36,500.00 31,500.00      - 3,000.00 2,000.00          
Consultants Fees (64540) 30,000.00 28,420 Constitutional Review 23,000.00 15,000.00 8,000.00 
Contingency - Advocacy Support 20,000.00 7,615 ARCHIVE - Now Ambassadors & Alumni ^^ 20,000.00 20,000.00      
Contingency - Diversity S'ship (93020) 10,000.00 2,448 ARCHIVE - Now Equity, Diversity & Inclusion ^^ 10,000.00 10,000.00 
Contingency - Hardship Support (93030) 12,000.00 - for members in fin difficulty 10,000.00 10,000.00 
Depreciation (64617) 3,000.00 - Calc at EOFY 3,000.00 3,000.00 
Election Campaign 20,000.00 9,346 ARCHIVE - Now Solve it with Science  ^^ 20,000.00 20,000.00 
Electricity 1,525 NEW 3,000.00 3,000.00 
Equipment for office (64650) 29,000.00 12,135 8,000.00 8,000.00 
Insurance (inc Workers Comp) (64768) 5,000.00 7,341 WC linked to wages (0.083%) + Business & Travel Insurance 10,500.00 10,500.00 
Interest Expense (61810) - - 
Subscriptions 2,500.00 1,552 UPDATE: Journals & Newspapers

inc Assoc Forum & Diversity Council 6,500.00 5,500.00        1,000.00        
Legal Fees (64770) 20,000.00 8,537 Constitutional Review, Superstars int'al trademarking 18,000.00 10,000.00 8,000.00 
Loss on Disposal (95000) - - 
Member Services (65010) 15,000.00 27,947 ARCHIVE - Now Member Services ^^ - 
Merchant Fees (61547) 5,013.00 2,798 Stripe Fees 1.8% of Rego 5,400.00 - 900.00 900.00 - 1,260.00 2,340.00 - 
Office Cleaning 1,610 NEW 2,800.00 2,800.00 
Photographer & Video(62430) 21,000.00 5,553 4,000.00 4,000.00 - 
Postage Freight & Stationery (64835) 13,775.00 4,174 5,850.00 3,300.00 250.00 100.00 1,200.00 1,000.00 - 
Presidents Expenses (62061) 9,650.00 2,431 6,650.00 6,000.00 650.00 
Printing  (64840) 21,050.00 3,759 Toner etc + Brochures 7,000.00 4,700.00 300.00 2,000.00 - 
Realised Currency Gains (499) - - 
Rent (64855) 40,000.00 27,597 39,600.00 39,600.00 
Repairs & Maintenance (64846) 2,000.00 1,028 2,500.00 2,500.00 
Salaries & Wages (63651) 740,000.00 556,529 see notes (inc Super for events) 858,000.00 447,900.00 32,000.00 13,000.00 14,000.00 4,500.00 4,500.00 5,100.00 66,000.00 59,000.00 212,000.00 
Speakers Fees (62072) 61,000.00 33,111 94,000.00 10,000.00 1,500.00 25,000.00 6,500.00 - - 4,000.00 47,000.00 
Staff Amenities (63915) 250.00 399 750.00 750.00 
Staff Recruitment Costs (63895) 1,000.00 885 1,200.00 1,200.00 
Staff & Board Professional Developmen 5,000.00 361 UPDATE: Staff Training 11,600.00 5,000.00 1,600.00 5,000.00 
Superannuation (63655) 70,300.00 52,406 9.5% Salaries & Wages 81,510.00 81,510.00 
Telephone - Mobiles (64941) 1,700.00 1,917 (new mobile and international calls) 1,200.00 1,200.00 
Telephone - Office (64940) 7,000.00 3,301 4,300.00 4,300.00 
Travel & Accommodation (62074) 116,750.00 92,861 107,100.00 11,000.00 2,700.00 3,500.00 3,500.00 4,000.00 7,400.00 10,000.00 - 65,000.00 
Unrealised Currency Gains (498) - 183 - 
Venue Hire (62076) 50,000.00 12,636 51,100.00 5,500.00 1,000.00 3,600.00 -              35,000.00    6,000.00 
Web Design & Hosting [64860] (64860) 5,000.00 1,650 Website upgrade + hosting 12,000.00 12,000.00 
Total Operating Expenses 1,729,238 1,095,307 $1,806,660.00 $878,660.00 $38,750.00 $45,900.00 $21,500.00 $29,600.00 $30,400.00 $15,000.00 $21,000.00 $208,810.00 $111,540.00 $405,500.00

Total Expenses 1,729,238 1,095,307 $1,806,660.00 $878,660.00 $38,750.00 $45,900.00 $21,500.00 $29,600.00 $30,400.00 $15,000.00 $21,000.00 $208,810.00 $111,540.00 $405,500.00

Net Profit (153,888) 278,308 -$141,660.00 -$570,660.00 -$13,750.00 $4,100.00 $128,500.00 -$29,600.00 $49,600.00 $15,000.00 $4,000.00 $186,190.00 $0.00 $17,000.00

Tfer to/from cash (Budget) (94000) - option for board to 'top up' from reserves to zero budget - 

Overall Budget
THE FEDERATION OF AUSTRALIAN SCIENTIFIC AND TECHNOLOGICAL SOCIETIES INCORPORATED

July 2019 to June 2020
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STA Membership Snapshot – FY 2018-19 
Prepared by Mitchell Piercey – Events & Membership Manager  
 
Membership Make-up 

• 2018 -19 FY Membership: 81 Members 
• Category Mix: 44 Ordinary Members / 37 Affiliated Members 

 
 

• 2018 – 2019 – 98.5% retention rate from base of 69 members (the Associations Forum indicated a 
retention rate of more than 90% is very strong) 

• Membership has been growing by an average of 15% for the past 3 years. Before this period 
membership growth had been stagnant for 3 years and previously to that had been in decline for 4 
years. 
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New Members in 2019 
ARC Centre of Excellence in Exciton Science 
(ACEx) 

Chemical Sciences Affiliated Cat2 

ARC Centre of Excellence in Future Low-
Energy Electronics Technologies (FLEET) 

Physical Sciences Affiliated Cat2 

AuScope Geographical and Geological Sciences Affiliated Cat2 

Australasian eResearch Organisations 
(AeRO) 

Technological Sciences Affiliated Cat3 

Australian Cardiovascular Alliance (ACvA) Medical and Cognitive Sciences Ordinary 

Australian Science Innovations General Science and Technology Affiliated Cat1 

Australian Society of Viticulture and 
Oenology (ASVO) 

Agriculture & Food Sciences Ordinary 

Australian-American Fulbright Commission General Science and Technology Affiliated Cat1 

Pawsey Supercomputing Centre Technological Sciences Affiliated Cat2 

Reproductive Health Australia (RHA) Biological Sciences Ordinary 

Soil Science Australia Agriculture & Food Sciences Ordinary 

South Pacific Environmental Radioactivity 
Association (SPERA) 

Physical Sciences Ordinary 

Women in Aviation International Australian 
Chapter (WAI) 

General Science and Technology Ordinary 

Resigned Member in 2019: 
Clean Air Society of Australia and New 
Zealand (CASANZ) 

Technological Sciences Ordinary 

Member Engagement 
• 1040 personal interactions with members in the 2018-19 FY
• 11 Member events hosted during the 2018-19 FY including 5 Meet-ups in Sydney (x2), Brisbane,

Canberra and Melbourne
• 2nd Annual STA CEO & Presidents Forum held in March leading into the Federal election.
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE ELECTIONS 2019 

CANDIDATE INFORMATION BOOKLET 

ALL CANDIDATE INFORMATION IS IN ALPHABETICAL ORDER BY LAST NAME. 
BIOGRAPHIES AND STATEMENTS ARE ATTACHED BELOW. 
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EARLY CAREER REPRESENTATIVE ............................................................................................................ 8 
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Dr Alice Jones ................................................................................................................................... 10 

Dr Mohsen Rahmani ......................................................................................................................... 11 
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Dr Chloe Taylor BSc, PhD ................................................................................................................ 14 

ORDINARY MEMBER .................................................................................................................................... 16 

Mr Mark Bazzacco ........................................................................................................................... 16 
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VICE PRESIDENT 
 

Dr Sue Barrell, FSTE GAICD 
Australian Meteorological and Oceanographic Society 

Australian Mathematical Sciences Institute (Board member) 

Women in STEMM Australia 

 
 

Nominators 
Dr Andrew Marshall, Australian Meteorological and Oceanographic Society  

Professor Emma Johnston, Australian Marine Sciences Association  

Brief Biography 
Dr Sue Barrell FTSE retired in 2018 as Chief Scientist, Bureau of Meteorology, responsible for research, 
innovation, science relationships, diversity, inclusion and STEM. Her 38-year career spanned roles across 
forecasting, research, system design, science/climate policy and governance, and leadership roles in IT, 
observations, engineering and science. 

Sue serves/served on or chairs many STEM-related bodies at the interface of government/academia/industry, 
including Space Industry Innovation Council, ARPANSA, CSIRO (Australia Telescope National Facility; Marine 
National Facility), NCI, IMOS, ACE CRC, ASTRO-3D, AMSI. 

Sue engages/engaged actively in international climate science, climate and data policy, and earth 
observations, including leadership of high-level activities of the World Meteorological Organization (WMO) 
and GEO. 

Sue’s commitment to science, leadership and gender equity continues through science leadership, board and 
advisory roles across the science, technology and education sectors, including STA Vice President; Chair, 
Marine National Facility Steering Committee; and member UTS Council. She enjoys opportunities to share 
experiences with, mentor and learn from those who are at earlier career stages. 

Sue is a Fellow of ATSE, Graduate of AICD, a WMO Gender Champion and an inaugural STA Superstar of STEM. 
She has a BSc (Hons) in Physics, Graduate Dipl. Meteorology and PhD in Astronomy. 

Statement 
Science, technology and diversity have defined my professional career, building on a solid base of physics and 
mathematics, and encompassing astronomy, meteorology, climatology, data and information systems. My 
experience spans the science to service value chain from problem definition, experiment design, data 
collection, analysis, research, application and policy, through to science, technology, engineering and 
innovation leadership. 

I have engaged with and contributed to diverse disciplines at technical and governance levels across 
government, academia and industry, including climate science, radiation protection, telecommunications, 
oceanography, cryosphere, space, high performance computing, data policy, education and disaster risk. As 
BoM Chief Scientist, I emphasised harnessing the power and potential of people, science, innovation, 
relationships and partnerships to increase productivity, quality and valued outcomes for stakeholders. 
I bring to STA VP my deep, diverse experience in science/technology management, strategy, leadership and 
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representation, and my commitment to a world-class STEM community that delivers for Australia’s future and 
is not defined by gender, disability or culture; one that is intrinsically diverse, respectful and inclusive, that 
values partnership and collaboration before competition, and both provides increased leverage for science 
and technology policy formulation and resourcing, and enhances our ability to attract, retain and grow the 
next generation STEM workforce.  

Additional Information 
In terms of the desired skills and attributes - the information provided above covers my STEM leadership, 
governance and board experience. Perhaps the only aspect not covered is my experience with the media, of 
which I have a fair amount, for the most part on topics such as operational Bureau matters, climate, and 
women in science, spread across television, radio and video. I benefited from excellent training in media and 
increased media and public-speaking exposure through the Superstars of STEM program. I welcome the 
opportunity as Vice President to support Jeremy Brownlie as the incoming President, and to bring a 
complementary mix of experience, especially in government, international engagement and the physical 
sciences, to the Executive team. I also bring my lived experience and achievements as a senior woman in STEM 
and my significant experience as a leader responsible for developing both strategy and practical solutions to 
deliver equity, diversity and inclusion.   
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VICE PRESIDENT  
 

Ms Tanya Ha 
Society for Environmental Toxicology and Chemistry  

 
 

 

Nominators 
Associate Professor Darren Saunders, Australian Society for Biochemistry and Molecular Biology 

Mr Mike Flattley, The Royal Society of Victoria 

Biography 
Tanya Ha is an award-winning science journalist, best-selling author and environmental advocate. She is also 
a media commentator on science and environmental topics. 

Tanya’s work focuses on linking science with broader society. She is Director of Engagement at Science in 
Public, managing publicity for National Science Week, communication for the National Stem Cell Foundation 
of Australia, and media programs for scientific conferences. She has also media trained hundreds of scientists. 

Tanya currently serves on the boards of Diversity Council Australia and Westernport Water. She is also on the 
advisory groups of the ARC Centre of Excellence in Exciton Science, the Wave Energy Research Centre, and 
Science Gallery Melbourne. She has served on the boards of Sustainability Victoria and Keep Australia 
Beautiful. 

Tanya has extensive print, radio and TV media experience, including reporting for ABC’s Catalyst, and 
presenting SBS’s Eco House Challenge. She won a UN environmental reporting award for her work on the 
climate change lifestyle show Warm TV. She is a highly-regarded speaker, and has hosted events at the World 
Science Festival Brisbane, Parliament House and The Wheeler Centre. 

Tanya’s books include Greeniology and Green Stuff for Kids. She is a passionate advocate for sustainability, 
scientific literacy and diversity. 

Statement 
I am a high-profile female leader in science engagement, environmental advocacy, and diversity and inclusion. 

I bring a multi-sector background to STA, with experience in the corporate, government, non-profit and media 
sectors. I understand their differing cultures and am adapt at speaking with them on their terms. A diplomat 
by nature, I have established warm relationships with Minister Andrews, Richard Marles and other 
parliamentarians. 

I served a term on the executive committee as Ordinary Member Representative and have continued to 
support STA through involvement in the Membership Committee, co-chairing the Equity Diversity and 
Inclusion Working Group, and Superstars of STEM. 

I currently serve on the boards of Diversity Council Australia (nominated by STA) and Westernport Water, and 
have several science-sector advisory board roles.  
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I have extensive media experience, including presenting four primetime TV shows, hundreds of interviews, 
plus media training 750+ scientists. I can easily step up when a female voice representing STA is needed. 

My work at Science in Public on initiatives such as Science Week and Fresh Science allows me to continue to 
build networks around the country.  

Together, my experience, strategic skills and personality position me to be a strong, visible, influential and 
engaging Vice President. 

Additional Information 
I am a female Asian-Australian (half Chinese), and have experienced the gender and racial discrimination 
that is rife in media and elsewhere. As a Director of Diversity Council Australia I am also across the issues 
facing other minorities or disadvantaged groups. 

Diversity and Inclusion is core to what I wish to lead at STA as VP – extending the work of the EDI committee, 
enhancing the diversity of STA’s stakeholders and networks (beyond academia to industry, government, 
business, etc), and providing an Asian female face that visually represents STA’s commitment to diversity.  
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TREASURER 
 

Professor Judith Dawes PhD, Fellow SPIE, Fellow OSA 

Australian Optical Society 

 
 
 
 
 

Nominators 
Professor Simon Fleming, Australian Optical Society 

Professor Orsola De Marco, Astronomical Society of Australia 

Brief Biography 
Judith Dawes is Professor of Physics at Macquarie University, Australia. She teaches physics and photonics, 
and is Director of MQ Photonics Research Centre, which aims to be the national partner of choice for industry-
focused research in optics and photonics in Australia. 

Judith obtained her BSc (Honours) and PhD from the University of Sydney and spent a year at the University 
of Rochester (USA) during her PhD. She held postdoctoral positions at the University of Toronto (Canada) and 
Macquarie University before being appointed to a continuing position at Macquarie. She is an Associate Editor 
for the premier OSA journal Optica, and former Chief Investigator in the ARC Centre of Excellence CUDOS. She 
is active in promoting Women in STEM, as co-chair of the Faculty Women in STEM committee. She is a former 
President of the Australian Optical Society, and Fellow of major international Optics societies SPIE and OSA. 
She was Treasurer for Science and Technology Australia (2017-2019). 

With interests in lasers and laser applications in medicine, she is developing applications of nanotechnology 
for medical diagnostics and sensing. Her research achievements include the invention of a new nonlinear-
optical laser material, Yb:YAB, and the invention of a laser-cured protein solder for microsurgery. 

Statement 
I have held the role of STA Treasurer from 2017-2019. In this role, I worked with the CEO and Accountant to 
approve payments weekly, and I reviewed the monthly accounts and reported to the Executive Committee 
and the Board. I co-chaired the new Finance Audit and Risk committee, which has advised on new accounting 
requirements and risk management. Working with this committee, I have learned about the new financial 
reporting requirements for Associations.   

My previous experience as a Head of Department (2013-2015), managing over ten million dollar budget under 
challenging circumstances, was useful for me in coming into the role of STA Treasurer, as much of the funding 
is committed to salaries, and the government funding has specific reporting requirements. During my career I 
have successfully managed the budgets of my ARC and other government research grants, with specific 
financial and outcomes-based reporting requirements.  

In my role as Council Member, Vice-President, President, then Past-President, of the Australian Optical Society 
(AOS), (2007-2014) I was responsible for overall strategy including lobbying government, as well as society 
activities including services to members such as newsletters and conferences.  We also signed MOUs with 
regional and international optics and photonics societies.   
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Additional Information 
I am a woman working in a typically male-dominated discipline (Physics and Photonics). While I had some 
inspirational male mentors during my career, I had very few female role models. When I was a student, I did 
not know any academic women with children (or even a partner).  So, I identify with the statement that you 
can’t be what you can’t see. I think that it is valuable for younger women to see senior women in positions of 
leadership. 
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EARLY CAREER REPRESENTATIVE  
 

Ms Lee Constable  
Australian Society of Plant Scientists 

Women in STEMM Australia 

 

Nominators 
Professor Rachel Burton, Australian Society of Plant Scientists  

Professor Marilyn Ball, Australian Society of Plant Scientists  

Brief Biography 
Lee Constable is a science communicator and the host and producer of Network 10's science TV show, Scope. 
Lee has completed a Bachelor of Science (First Class Honours), Bachelor of Arts, and Master of Science 
Communication at the Australian National University. She is also the founder of Co-Lab: Science Meets Street 
Art where she pairs early-career researchers and PhD students with street artists who create live murals 
inspired by their work for the public. In 2018 Lee was a part of Homeward Bound, a global leadership program 
for women in STEMM and was aboard the largest all-female expedition to Antarctica. In 2018 Lee was also 
selected for the World Congress of Science and Factual Producers Emerging Producers Program which allowed 
her to hone her skills in developing and pitching documentary and factual series concepts. In June 2019 she 
released best-selling children’s non-fiction book How to Save the Whole Stinkin' Planet which incorporates 
storytelling with best-practice science education to engage young audiences in climate change and waste 
science. 

Statement 
I am motivated to nominate for the position of Early Career representative on the STA board because I have 
spent the start of my career as a science broadcaster publicly advocating for an Australian science and 
technology sector that is able to thrive, financially and culturally, and I would like to have the opportunity to 
have a positive impact in this area. As the host of children’s STEM TV show, Scope, I am in constant contact 
with the early career science and technology community, ensuring that their work is represented in an 
engaging, accurate and accessible way on the show. As a member of STA and Australian Science 
Communicators, I would use the opportunity to be on the STA board to strengthen ties between the research 
and professional science communication sectors in Australia and advocate for strategic, evidence-based 
communication of research in both communities. I am keen to continue the work that out-going early career 
representative, Zoe, and ongoing early career representative, Sumeet, have been doing to highlight challenges 
facing early-career researchers in Australia. It is my hope that through my work as a professional science 
communicator I can also add a voice for non-research careers in STEM. 

Additional Information 
I am passionate about equity and diversity in STEM.  As someone with a public education background who 
entered university as the 'first in family' and from a farming family, I am speak publicly about the importance 
of inclusivity in science with regard to class and socioeconomic context. As a woman and member of the queer 
community I am also passionate about equity in terms of gender and sexuality in STEM. I am also keen to 
address my areas of privilege to be a positive advocate for equity in ways that don’t align with my personal 
identity or experience.  
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EARLY CAREER REPRESENTATIVE  
 

Dr Vincent Corbin 
Australasian Genomic Technologies Association 
 
 

 
 

Nominators 
Professor Anthony Papenfuss, Australasian Genomic Technologies Association 

Dr Goknur Giner, Australasian Genomic Technologies Association 

Brief Biography 
Dr Vincent Corbin is a bioinformatician and postdoctoral fellow with joint appointments at both the Walter 
and Eliza Hall Institute and the Whitehead Institute at the Massachusetts Institute of Technology. A French 
national, he completed his PhD in Physics in the United States, and has subsequently been involved in genomic 
research in cancer, HIV and developmental biology. His focus has been in the development of novel 
bioinformatic tools to understand fundamental disease mechanisms, advancing fundamental research in the 
discipline of bioinformatics. He is currently leading work in the detection of RNA structural heterogeneity, and 
the functional implications of RNA structural variance. 

Statement 
Bioinformatics is a relatively new scientific discipline, with somewhat limited representation in the STEM 
sector. The rapid advancement of genomic technologies with potential for significant scientific discovery has 
come with an associated need for specific skill sets to manage and interrogate the data generated. I’m keen 
to become a leader in this field, leading fundamental research and supporting the development of the 
discipline. I am a strong advocate for bioinformatic research across sectors, and believe that as the field 
matures, there should be increasing recognition of bioinformaticians as independent researchers. I’ve had 
leadership roles within institute postdoctoral associations, and am also keen to advocate for early career 
researchers. I’ve been a strong communicator in these roles, liaising across research groups and with student 
and senior staff representatives. I’m honoured to be nominated by two bioinformatician members of the 
Australasian Genomic Technologies Association, and would be glad to represent both my scientific discipline 
and early career researchers within Science and Technology Australia.  

Additional Information 
Bioinformatics is relatively underrepresented field in science, despite increasing importance to biological and 
medical research. I would be honoured to represent this field.  
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EARLY CAREER REPRESENTATIVE  
 

Dr Alice Jones 
Australian Marine Science Association 

 

 

 

 

Nominators 
Dr Jennie Fluin, Ecological Society of Australia 

Professor Bronwyn Gillanders, Australian Society of Fish Biology 

Brief Biography 
I am a quantitative ecologist and apply my skills to a range of applied research questions, usually focussed on 
marine ecosystems, although I dabble in terrestrial ecology too! My research has the uniting theme of 
detecting and managing the impact of human activities and environmental change on ecosystems and species, 
with the aim of conserving ecosystems and maintaining vital ecosystem services. Over the last three years, my 
primary research focus has been applied marine ecology, particularly coastal ecosystem monitoring, 
conservation and restoration.  

I undertook my studies in the UK and have a BSc. Hons in Zoology (University of Manchester), an MSc. in 
Aquatic Resource Management (Kings College London) and a PhD in Marine Ecology (National Oceanography 
Centre, Southampton). I was awarded my PhD in 2012 and moved to Australia in 2013 to take up a 
postdoctoral position at the University of Adelaide. Since then I have successfully transitioned from marine 
ecology to global terrestrial ecology and back again! The broad skill set that I have developed in these various 
roles has stood me in good stead; it has made me adaptable, encouraged me to develop transferable skills, 
and has broadened my understanding of ecology and my network of collaborators. 

Statement 
After finishing my PhD I worked in scientific consultancy before starting a postdoc at the University of Adelaide 
where I continue to work closely with scientists, policymakers and managers from government, industry and 
NGO sectors. I have recently been promoted to a level B position in recognition of my research excellence and 
external engagement successes, which rely heavily on my ability to develop strong networks and communicate 
effectively. I am currently leading a project researching Blue Carbon in South Australia, which was nominated 
for the SA Climate Leaders Awards in 2018. The project team includes scientists from multiple universities, SA 
Water, the EPA and CSIRO as well as government policymakers and managers. I am an invited expert advisor 
on the SA Government’s technical reference panel for Blue Carbon and the Commonwealth Government’s 
Emissions Reduction Fund Blue Carbon working group. These activities demonstrate my ability to lead, engage 
and influence inside and outside academia and my experience supporting the development of science-based 
environmental management strategies and policies. I would relish the opportunity to be part of STA because 
of its commitment to advancing the role, reputation and impact of all sectors of science and technology in 
Australia.
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EARLY CAREER REPRESENTATIVE  
 

Dr Mohsen Rahmani 
Australian Optical Society 

Australian Institute of Physics 

 

 

Nominators 
Professor Dragomir Neshev, Secretary, Australian Optical Society 

Professor Jodie Bradby, President, Australian Institute of Physics 

Brief Biography 
I was born in post-revolutionary Iran and grew up with the Iran-Iraq war raging around me. However, I never 
gave up learning. After studying in Iran, Ukraine, Singapore, and working in the UK, I migrated to Australia in 
2015, where I have had the most fruitful period of my career. Overall, I have published 48 journal papers (my 
h-index=25) and have presented 21 invited talks in international conferences. I have received several grants, 
e.g. ARC DECRA, DP, Linkage, Australia-Germany Joint-Scheme, and managed to secure a seed-funding for an 
ANU spinout-company on nano-photonics. I have communicated my research through 11 radio and TV 
interviews and coverage in news-outlets like ABC, SBS, Sydney Morning Herald, and The Australian. 
My research outcomes have been recognised by prizes, including the Eureka Early-Career Prize, the Australian 
Optical Society Geoff Opat Award, and Early-Career Medal from the International Union of Pure and Applied 
Physics. Also, my teaching has been recognised by ANU VCbs Award for Early-Career Academics, and the 
Fellowship of the Higher Education Academy. I have organised a workshop with 200 attendees, and have been 
a committee member for six international conferences. Also, in Science Meets Parliament-2018, I managed to 
invite two MPs to ANU. 

Statement 
Because of my background, I am familiar with various cultures and educational systems. Also, I have valuable 
experience in several universities and society committees. Last year, I was the representative for research staff 
at ANU Education Committee (chaired by DVC-A), where I was a voice of researchers when deciding on major 
issues of education and research training. Meanwhile, I am a member of the ANU network for early-careers 
(NECTAR). Also, I serve as the Chair of IEEE-Photonics Society, and an Executive Committee Member of the 
Australian Institute of Physics, in the ACT. Therefore, I am well-aware of the challenges faced by both ECRs 
and professional societies. 

On the one hand, the needs of ECRs for career development are sometimes ignored in decision-making 
committees. On the other hand, some (/migrated) ECRs may have difficulties in adapting to the Australian 
values and/or educational system. If elected, I will strive to address such issues from both ends. I hope I can 
improve the policy on research and educational training with a focus on employability and high 
research/academic outputs, simultaneously. I believe I can play an important role in further improving the 
alignment between diverse ECRs and The National Innovation and Science Agenda. 
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EARLY CAREER REPRESENTATIVE  
 

Dr Tatiana Soares da Costa 
Australian Society for Biochemistry and Molecular Biology 

Australian Society of Plant Scientists 

 

 

Nominators 
Professor Joel Mackay, Australian Society for Biochemistry and Molecular Biology 

Professor Leann Tilley, Australian Society for Biochemistry and Molecular Biology 

Brief Biography 
Dr Tatiana Soares da Costa is an early career biochemist and Group Leader at La Trobe University. Since 
finishing her PhD from the University of Adelaide in 2013, she has been awarded NHMRC Early Career and ARC 
DECRA fellowships to pursue her research in antibiotic and herbicide discovery to tackle the exponential rise 
in resistance that is threatening our global health and agricultural industry. Over the course of her research 
career, she has published 32 papers, co-authored 8 patents, presented at >40 conferences and has been 
recognised with >30 awards, including the Edman ECR award from the Australian Society for Biochemistry and 
Molecular Biology (ASBMB). To pursue the translational aspects of her research, Tatiana has liaised with 
Atomwise, Bayer, BioCurate, Grains and Research Development Corporation and Public Health England. She 
currently serves as the ASBMB’s Chair of Communications and Editor of the Australian Biochemist magazine.  

Tatiana’s passion for inspiring the next generation of scientists has continued to flourish, with the supervision 
and mentoring of high school, undergraduate and postgraduate students. She is also committed to making 
her research findings accessible to the wider community by giving public lectures, participating in radio 
interviews and outreach programs, and publishing press pieces. 

Statement 
I am a confident communicator both orally and in writing, and have a strong commitment to disseminating 
research findings and the barriers facing ECRs in STEM to academia, industry and the broader community. I 
have been a member of ASBMB (an associate of STA) for the last 9 years, which represents ~1000 
biochemists/molecular biologists within Australia. As the ASBMB’s Chair of Communications, I have developed 
my leadership and communication skills by organising seminars/conferences, maintaining social media 
platforms, liaising with industry and educational bodies and participating at Science Meets Parliament. 
Through my role as the Editor of the Australian Biochemist, I manage committee members, write articles on 
research and teaching, including a regular column on issues pertinent to ECRs, and liaise with senior 
researchers in my field. My passion for providing support to ECRs can be further evidenced by helping to 
establish a postdoctoral society at my institute, where I served as the President. In this position, I was 
committed to the organisation of professional development and networking events. As a highly motivated and 
ambitious ECR, this position will provide a fantastic opportunity to foster my leadership skills, advocate for 
ECRs, build my networks in STEM and enhance my communication skills. 
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Additional Information 
Even though Science as a career attracts people from across the world, English has become the language of 
choice to communicate our ideas and findings. I grew up in a non-English speaking third world country and my 
parents migrated to New Zealand to give me an opportunity to pursue a career in Science. Now that I have 
mastered the language of Science, I have a voice that I want to use to promote science advocacy and 
community engagement. As an Athena SWAN advocate and part of my involvement with outreach programs 
and research committees, I am committed to increasing the visibility of women in STEMM and achieving 
gender balance in senior roles.  I am also passionate about communicating research findings in a way that is 
easily understood by people from different backgrounds, making science accessible and fun. 
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EARLY CAREER REPRESENTATIVE  
 

Dr Chloe Taylor BSc, PhD 
High Blood Pressure Research Council of Australia 

National Tertiary Education Union 

 

 

 
Nominators 
Professor Vaughan Macefield; Australian Neuroscience Society, Baker Institute, NTEU 

Dr Francine Marques; High Blood Pressure Research Council of Australia 

Brief Biography 
I am a cardiovascular physiologist, with a background in exercise science and circadian rhythms. Following my 
PhD in blood pressure control (Liverpool, UK), I was recruited to Western Sydney University (WSU) in 2011. I 
trained in microneurography direct recordings of sympathetic activity from peripheral nerves in humans band 
I now use this technique to explore sex differences in the neural control of blood pressure at rest and during 
stress. This year I was selected for the Franklin Women mentoring program, which targets women who aspire 
to leadership in health and medical research. I contribute to academic leadership within my institution as an 
academic course advisor for over 700 exercise science students and as a member of WSU School Academic 
Committee for Science and Health. As part of WSU Career Development for Academics working group, I have 
made a positive impact by initiating early career researcher forums and developing tools to support staff in 
promotion applications. I contribute to science engagement on an international level through my role on the 
Communications Committee for the American Autonomic Society. When I’m not engaged in science, I can be 
found at my local parkrun or doing soccer keepy-uppies in the garden! 

Statement 
Whilst I see this as a fantastic professional development activity, I feel I could bring great value to the STA 
team. I am particularly keen to contribute to STA’s priority area of equipping the future Australian workforce 
with STEM skills. I regularly lead science activities for primary and high school students including interactive 
workshops, competitions and invited talks. I find engaging with young people extremely rewarding, and 
feedback from staff and students suggests I have a talent for inspiring, motivating and stimulating curiosity for 
science. This is an area I feel passionate about and I would like to share my ideas for supporting enhanced 
STEM education programs.  

Recently, I was selected to mentor a high school student as part of the STEM coaching program led by Curious 
Minds for bright, Indigenous and non-Indigenous Australian female students. I have a drive for supporting and 
celebrating women in STEM. I bring experience in doing this on an institutional level and, through STA, I wish 
to contribute to a national culture of support and empowerment for women.   

Additional Information 
Whilst I see this as a fantastic professional development activity, I feel I could bring great value to the STA 
team. I am particularly keen to contribute to STA’s priority area of equipping the future Australian workforce 
with STEM skills. I regularly lead science activities for primary and high school students including interactive 
workshops, competitions and invited talks. I find engaging with young people extremely rewarding, and 
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feedback from staff and students suggests I have a talent for inspiring, motivating and stimulating curiosity for 
science. This is an area I feel passionate about and I would like to share my ideas for supporting enhanced 
STEM education programs.  

Recently, I was selected to mentor a high school student as part of the STEM coaching program led by Curious 
Minds for bright, Indigenous and non-Indigenous Australian female students. I have a drive for supporting and 
celebrating women in STEM. I bring experience in doing this on an institutional level and, through STA, I wish 
to contribute to a national culture of support and empowerment for women.   
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ORDINARY MEMBER  
 

Mr Mark Bazzacco 
Statistical Society of Australia 

Council of Australian Postgraduate Associations 
(via Swinburne University Student Association Membership) 

 

Nominators 

Dr Larry Marshall, Australian Optical Society 

Dr Cathy Foley, Australian Institute of Physics 

Brief Biography 
Mark has held senior leadership roles across the research and innovation, government, higher education, 
aviation and defence sectors. Mark is currently the Director of Strategy and Chief of Staff at CSIRO. His current 
role involves leading the strategy, planning, performance & evaluation and investment functions at the 
national science agency. Prior to this he held similar senior roles in the university and government sectors.  

Mark is currently completing his PhD (in Innovation Systems) and is a Graduate of the Australian Institute of 
Company Directors (AICD). He also holds a Master of Business Administration (MBA), Bachelor of Commerce 
in Management Sciences and Certificate in Executive Management and Development. He is currently a 
member of the AICD and Statistical Society of Australia. I have also served on the Executive Committee for the 
Australasian Association for Institutional Research. 

Statement 
I’ve worked across a number of sectors of the innovation system, including in senior roles at a science agency 
and university. This experience has allowed me to develop a broad awareness and holistic perspective of the 
innovation system, including the opportunities and challenges facing the sector and STA as it seeks to amplify 
and advance the importance of science and technology in Australia. I am a strong believer and sponsor of the 
value science, technology and innovation holds for the nation – be it economic, social and/or environmental.  

I’d bring to the STA Executive Committee experience in leadership across strategy, performance, government 
and governance, coupled with my deep understanding of innovation systems from my PhD. Together with this 
experience and passion for innovation, I am seeking an opportunity to be involved with STA where I can deliver 
value back to the system through these expertise and operational understanding. I have also previously served 
on a NFP Executive Committee in the university sector.  
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